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To Our Shareholders and Friends

|Perliomrnes ovr tio Past Year

Driven by expansion in overseas business activities, Kubota Car-
poration and subsidiaries {hereinafter, “the Company") continued
to report a robust performance for fiscal 2007, ended March 31,
2007. Operating income, which is the best measure of the Compa-
ny's earning power, moved to record levels for the third consecutive
fiscal year. Overseas, we expanded the scope of our business activ-
ities by introducing new products meeting customer needs, princi-
pally in the Internal Combustion Engine and Machinery segment,
and implemented aggressive measures to further develop our posi-
tion in Asia outside Japan. In the domestic marke!, demand was
relatively weak, but we secured profitability by continuing to reduce
costs and increase productivity. These management efforts in Japan
and overseas enabled Kubota to report growth in both revenues and
operating profits for the fiscal year under review.

The Company reported consolidated revenues of ¥1,127.5
billion, an annual increase of ¥61.7 billion (5.8%), in fiscal 2007. Al-
though revenues in Japan declined slightly, overall expansion was
driven by continued major growih in overseas revenues, especially
sales of tractors, engings, and construction machinery. As a conse-
quence, the ralio of overseas revenues to consolidated revenuss rose
5.8 percentage points, 10 46.5%.

Operating income climbed ¥9.3 billion (7.7%), 1o ¥130.3 bil-
tion, from the prior year, the highest level in the Company's history. By
segment, operating income in Internal Combustion Engine and Ma-
chingry expanded substantially, supported by the increase in revenues
and the positive effect of the weakening of the yen. Pipes, Valves, and
Indusirial Castings also reporied a gain in operating profit, owing to
continued cost-cutting, including reductions in fixed expenses, and
higher revenues in overseas markets. Environmental Engineering,
however, posted a substantial decling in profitability and reported an
operating 1oss accompanying the decline in sales prices. Operating
income in Other, however, showed staady expansion, as a result of in-
creased sales of vending machines and other products.

Notwithstanding the rise in operating income, income from
continuing operations before income taxes, minarity interests in earn-
ings of subsidiaries, and equity in net income of affiliated companies
decreased ¥9.0 billion {6.4%), to ¥131.6 billion. This decline was due
to the absence of the gain on an exchange of shares of ¥15.9 billion
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reparted in the prior year. After deductions of ¥49.0 billion in income
taxes (representing an effective fax rate of 37.2%), ¥4.9 billion of mi-
nority interests in earnings of subsidiaries and equity in net income of
affiliated companies, and a ¥1.3 bitlion loss from giscontinued opera-
tions. net of taxes, net income decreased ¥4.6 bittion (5.6%), to ¥76.5
billion from the prior year.

Regarding dividends, to expand the return to shareholders, the
Company has decided to increase the cash dividend applicable to the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, including dividends o be paid atter
the end of the fiscal year, to ¥12 per common share, or ¥60 per five
common shares, compared with ¥10 per common share, or ¥50 per five
common shares applicable to the prior fiscal year. Accordingly, in addi-
tion to the interim dividend of ¥5 per comman share, or ¥25 per five
common shares already paid, the Company will pay ¥7 per common
share, or ¥35 per five common shares as a year-end cash dividend.

Wiih the objectives of improving capital efficiency and raising
the value of Kubota’s stock, the Company has adopled a policy of {lexi-
bly buying back portions of shares gutstanding. The Company pur-
chased 7.98 million of treasury stock (¥8.5 billion). On the other hand,
the Company retired 7.95 million shares of treasury stock (¥8.5 billion)

on March 30, 20G7.
Kubota Corporation 1




Management Issues upon wh ineNCompanyRSHoulMGE
plement Countermeasures ‘

To achieve further development and steady increases in enterprise
value, the Company is actively addressing the following management
issues.

Accelerating the Expansion of Internal Combustion Engine
and Machinery in Overseas Operations

The Company is allocating management resources to the overseas
operations of tnternal Combustion Engine and Machinery on a priori-
ty basis to expand its business domain from the perspective of the
product portfolio and geographical coverage, while working to
strengthen the business structure of this segment to the level appro-
priate for a global enterprise.

From a product portfolio point of view, the Company is
broadening the scope of averseas operations of the segment by ex-
panding the mode! lineup of tractors, construction machinery, and
farm machinery as well as substantially diversifying the product ling-
up. Concerning diesel engines, which are key components in Kubota
products, the Company is endeavoring to develop and manufacture
its diesel engines in a timely manner that meet more stringent emis-
sion regulations to be introduced in Japan, North America, and Eu-
rope. Through this effort, the Company is enhancing the competitive
edge of its diesel enging powered producis and further expanding
sales of diese! engines 1o other manufacturers.

From a geographical perspective, the Company is promply
implementing different strategies in North America, Europe, and Asia,
responding to the regional characteristics of each market. In North
America and Europe, which are cusrently the segment's principal mar-
kets, the Company is working to significantly enhance its product and
service supply capabilities. [n Asia outside Japan, where rapid market
expansion is ongoing, the Company is moving forward activety with
initiatives to strengthen the capabilities of its production and sales
networks in Thailand and China. Through the full implementation of
these initiatives, the Company is promoting the geographical diversi-
fication of the overseas operations of Internal Combustion Engine and
Machinery.

Moreover, lo prevail in intense competition and acceterate the
expansion of overseas business activities, it will be essential to en-
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hance the segment’s business structure to enable it to outpace the com-
petition in global markets. The Company will fortity production capacity
in Japan and overseas to meet rising overseas demand while aiso train-
ing personnel who can carry oul the work of a global enterprise, speed
up R&D activities, and work to cansistently enhance design and manu-
facturing capabilities as weil as operating efficiency—all with the objec-
tive of strengthening the segment’s business structure from a compre-
hensive perspective.

Restructuring the Public Works Related Businesses

The Company's public works related businesses are included in Pipes,
Valves, and Industrial Castings and Environment Engineering. These busi-
nesses are confronting an exceptionally challenging operating environment
hecause of the continuous cutbacks in public works investment. To re-
spand effectively to changes in the operating environment, the Gompany is
underiaking drastic restructuring in its business structure.

{a) Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings Segment to Step Up
Initiatives to Expand Core Businesses
The Company has worked 10 strengthen its profitability by making drastic
reductions in costs, including fixed expenses, bringing about major in-
creases in productivity, and becoming thoroughly market-oriented and
competitive. As a result of these efiorts, the Company has been success-
ful in raising the ratio of operating profitability to double-digit levels.
Going forward, to increase profits, the Company must actively
facus on expanding core business while advancing into closely related
areas as it sirives to maintain and increase its earning power. This will
require shifting the business activities from the public sector to the pri-
vate sector, and also from the domestic market to overseas markets. The
decision made at the end of the fiscal year under review to establish a
jcint venture in India for manufacturing ductile iron pipe is symbolic of
what must be done in other product areas—shift the thrust of business
development 1o the private sector and to opportunities overseas as a part
of initiatives to further expand corg businesses.

(b} Restructuring Environmental Engineering

The deterioration of the market environment and the intensification of
compelitian in this segment have occurred faster than anticipated, thus
creating a highly challenging set of operating conditions. In addition, the
emergence of compliance issues has acted to accelerate deterioration in




business perfarmance, and the segment has fallen into a tough situa-
tion. To revitalize and restructure this segment, the Company is agares-
sively working to shift its business maodel and concentrate on its core
competencies. Specifically, by developing its positions in the private
sector and overseas markets, the Company is endeavaring to reduce de-
pendency of this segment on the public sector while also promoting a
shift from the plant engineering business to the sales and installation of
machinery and equipment. In addition, by focusing on water-related
husinesses, the Company will work lo make more efficient use of man-
agement resources in this segment and thereby promptly recover sound
profitability and strengthen its business structure.

To make a successiul transition to its new business model, the
segment must have strong product development capabilities for stand-
alone equipment and be cost-competitive. With this in mind, in April
2007, the Company formed the Environmental Equipment R&D Center.
Through the activities of this new center, the Company intends to make
the manufaciuring technology and development capabilities nurtured
by tnternal Combustion Engine and Machinery available to this seg-
ment and, while taking thorough measures to lower costs, differentiate
its technology from that af other companies.

(c) Moving toward Close Teamwork between the Two Segments
Both Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings and Environmental Engi-
neering have core strengths in water-related products. By moving to-
ward close teamwork between these segments, the Gompany will seek
to realize synergies among their products and technoiogies and ach-
ieve greater operational efficiencies. The Company has taken specific
measuras in this direction by combining the organizations of the two
segments within the parent company, beginning in April 2007. Going
forward, by promoting the sharing of information related to products
and technalogies connected with “water” and strengthaning teamwork
in development and sales activities, the Company will wark 1o increase
the competitivengss of both segments.

Management Based on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

To achieve medium-to-long term growth and cevelopment, the Compa-
ny must be an enterprise that continuously contributes to the sustainable
development of saciety in harmany with the environment in addition to
increasing its ecenomic value, With this awareness, the Company is im-
plementing CSR management ag the most important management poli-

cy, and it pursues its corporate activities with a strong sense of respon-
sibility regarding the economic, social, and environmental aspects of its
activities as a global corporate citizen that responds positively to the ex-
pectations and trust of its various stakeholders.

Leoking ahead, the Company will adhere strongly to its man-
agement principle: “The Kuboia Group contribuies to the development
of society and the preservation of the earth’s environment through its
products, technology, and services that provide the foundation for so-
ciety and for affluent lifestyles.” To remain an upsianding and proud
member of society, the Company will also strengthen its compliance,
internal contrgls, and corporate governance, as well as ensure full ad-
herence to these and other aspects of its activities that are basic to
management in the spirit of CSR. '

During the fiscal year under review, the management and staff
of Kubota worked together and achieved the best performance in the
Company's history in terms of operating profit. However, we cannot
rest here because of the many uncertainties in the operating environ-
ment. Various developments, such as concern about a slowdown in the
L1.S. economy, changes in the agricultural market in Japan as new gov-
ernment policies go into effect, continuing price hikes of raw materials,
and the uncertainty of foreign currency exchange and interest rate
movements, are expected to bring about changes that will have a major
impact on the Company’s management and performance.

By responding quickly and appropriately ta these changes in
the operating environment and devoting our fullest energtes to ad-
dressing the previously mentioned issues, we are commitled to con-
tinuing to build our corporate value. We thank you for your investment
in Kubota and your continuing support in the years ahead.

June 2007

A

Daisuke Hatakake
President and Reprasentative Director

Kubota Corporation 3
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Review of Operations
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Biliipns of Yen

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Revenues ¥1,127.5  ¥1,065.7 ¥994.5 ¥039.2 ¥934.8
Internal Combustion Engine and Machinery 746.8 6741 594.3 511.0 4531
Revenues by Sector Farm Fquipment and Engines 643.2 5935 531.0 460.2 408.3
Construction Machinery 103.6 80.6 63.2 508 44 8
Revenues in Japan and Overseas Japan 258.3 269.2 258.8 244 .8 227.4
Overseas 4B88.5 404 .9 3354 266.2 2257

Combing Harvester PRO488 Tractor L3408 Sub-Compact Tractor BX24
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Bi-Excavator: KX080-3

Revenues in Internal Combusticn Engine and Machinery
were ¥746.8 billion ($6,329 million), 10.8% higher than the
prior year, comprising 66.3% of consclidated revenues. Do-
mestic revenues decreased 4.1%, 1o ¥258.3 billion {$2,189
million), and overseas revenues increased 20.7%. 0 ¥488.5
billion ($4, 140 million). This segment comprises farm equip-
ment, engines, and construction machinery.

In the domestic market, sales of farm egquipment
declined because of lackluster market conditions. In the do-
mestic market for farm equipment, new government agricul-
tural policies have been introduced, and the implementation
of these measures is resulting in structural changes within
the agricultural sector, leading to a postponement of equip-
ment purchases, principally among medium-sized farms.
Within this market environment, to revitalize the operations,
the Company implemented sales expansion policies carefully
tailored to various customer groups and was able to increase
its market share; however, these efforts did not compensate
for the market slump. On the other hand, sales of canstruction
machinery rose significantly due to steady demand for con-
struction machinery, the introduction of new models, and

expansion of sales to major machinery rental companies. In

Diesel Engine V1505

addition, sales of engines, mainly to manufacturers of con-
struction and industrial machinery, showed steady expan-
sion.

In overseas markets, sales of fractors, the Compa-
ny's core product, expanded steadily. [n the United States,
sales of medium-sized tractors showed marked expansion
accompanying the introduction of new models, while sales
of small-sized tractors weakened along with the slowdown
in housing starts. in Europe, sales of tractors showed strong
expansion as the Company introduced new products and
implemented an active marketing program. Moreover, in
Asgia outside Japan, sales of tracters sustained a high rate
of growth in Thailand, where demand for traciors is expand-
ing rapidly.

Sales of construction machinery reporied steady ex-
pansion in Europe, the principal overseas market of con-
struction machinery, due to rising demand coupled with the
introduction of new products. Sales of construction machi-
nery in North America also increased. In addition, sales of
engines in Europe and the United States grew steadily, and

sales of combine harvesters in China increased rapidiy.

Kubota Corperation 7




Review of Operations

Revenues in Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings were
¥194.2 billion ($1,646 millicn), 2.4% higher than the prior
year, comprising 17.2% of consolidated revenues. Domestic
~ revenues decreased 2.2%, to ¥163.4 billion ($1,385 million),

and overseas revenues increased 36.7%, 1o ¥30.8 billion

($261 million). This segment comprises pipes, valves, and in-
dLJ'StriaI castings.

\In the domestic market, demand for ductile iron pipes
ahd pIaSljc pipes was lackluster, but the Company was able
to slightly\ing:rease sales of plastic pipes by raising prices,

while sales of\dugtile iron pipes declined marginally. Sales of

industrial castings\expanded‘ mainly to the private sector,
such as the steel anc}\engigy industries, but sales of prod-

B | ucts to the public sector fell ghargly.
. T In overseas markets, expcﬁffé"of‘guctiie iron pipes to
the Middle East were robust, and sales of i\ﬁdustrial castings
continued 10 increase substantially, owing to high levels of pri-

vale-sector capital expenditures.

Ductile Iron Pipes

Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings

o o o Billions of Yen B
o . B B ~ - 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Revenues ¥1,127.5 ¥1,065.7 ¥994 5 ¥939.2 ¥934.8
Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings 194.2 189.7 170.6 175.2 177.2
Revenues by Sector Pipes and Valves 155.3 150.6 136.6 143.8 145.6
Industrial Castings 38.9 391 340 31.4 317
Revenues in Japan and Overseas Japan 163.4 167.2 1555 1525 159.0
Qverseas 30.8 225 5.2 227 18.2

PVC-U Pipes and Fittings Cracking Tubes' MERT(Mixing Etement Radiant Tube}

8 Kubota Corporation




Water Punficabon Plant

Bitlions of Yen

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Revenues ¥1,127.5 ¥1,065.7 ¥994 .5 ¥039.2 ¥934.8
Environmental Engineering 90.6 109.9 117.3 115.7 136.4
Revenues by Sector Environmental Engineering 90.6 109.9 117.3 115.7 136.4
Revenues in Japan and Overseas Japan 86.5 104 9 1135 112.3 1345
Overseas 4.1 50 3.8 3.3 1.9

Environmental Engineeri ng

Revenues in Environmental Engineering were ¥90.6 billion
{3768 million}, 17.5% lower than in the prior year, comprising
i 8:0%--of _consolidated revenues. Domestic revenues de-
creased 1';'76\")67103865 billion ($733 million), and overseas
revenues decreased 16.8%, to ¥4.1 billion ($35 million). This
segment comprises environmental_control plants and pumps.

In the domestic market, the "operating environment
cantinued 1o be extremely challenging because of the de-
cline in public-sector demand and the drop in_sales prices
due to more intense competition. In addition, suspension of
designated pre-approved suppliers due to compliance is-
sues had a major negative impact. As a result, the Water &

N\
Sewage Engingering Division and Pumps Division suffered\a

substantial dectine in revenues. Overseas revenues also de-.

clined due to a decrease in sales of pumps. which is the *

main export product in this segment.
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Review of Operations

Revenues in Other were ¥95.8 billion ($812 million), 4.1% high-

er than in the prior year, comprising 8.5% of consolidated reve-

nues. Domestic revenues increased 4.9%, to ¥95.3 billion !

($808 million}, and overseas revenues decreased 60.0%, to /

¥0.5 billion {$4 million). This segment comprises vending ma- /

chines, electronic equipped machinery, air-conditioning equip—/

ment, construction, septic tanks, condominiums, and other

business.

/

Sales of construction feli sharply because of thé Com-

pany’s realignment measures, including discontinuance of re-

ceiving orders from the public sector as an origihal contractor.

Sales of vending machines, condominiums,/and air-condition-

ing equipment increased favorably, while sales of electronic

equipped machinery and seplic tanks declined,

/

J) LT D

Vending Maching

Billions of Yen

Scales Dignal Loadcell Series

10 Kubota Corporation

Constant Feed Weigher

- 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Hevenues ¥1,127.5  ¥1,065.7 ¥904 5 ¥939.2 ¥934.8
Other 95.8 921 112.3 137.4 168.0
Revenues by Sector Building Materials & Housing 17.2 135 249 51.8 64.4
Other 78.6 78.6 87.4 856 103.7
Revenues in Japan and Overseas Japan 95.3 90.8 1116 1351 164.9
Overseas 0.5 1.2 0.7 23 3.2




Five-Year Financial Summary

Kubeta Corporation and Subsidiaries  Years Ended March 31, 2007, 2008, 2005, 2004, and 2003

Thousands of
LS. Dollars
[Except Per Share
Millions of Yen Information)
(Except Per Share Information) (Note 1}
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2007
For the year
Revenues ¥1,127,456 ¥1,065736 ¥ 994,483 ¥ 939234 ¥ 0934765 $ 9,554,712
Percentage of previous year 105.8% 107.2% 105.9% 100.5% 85.9%
Cost of revenues 794,687 753,952 716,495 703,938 698,149 6,734,635
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 199,356 186,017 182,498 199,062 180,857 1,689,458
Loss from disposal and impaimment of businesses and
fined assets 3,066 4,709 1,414 6,359 2,816 25,983
Operating income 130,347 121,058 94,076 29,875 52,943 1,104,636
Income from continuing operations 77,743 81,149 107,132 12,848 8,995 658,839
Income {loss) from discontinued oparaticns, net of taxes (1,286) (115} 10,769 (1,148 {16,999 (10,898}
Net income {loss): 76,457 81,034 117,901 11,700 {8,004) 647,941
Percentage of previous year 94.4% 68.7% 1,007.7% — —
Percentage of revenues 6.8% 7.6% 11.9% 1.2% (0.9)%
At year-end
Total assets ¥1,502,532 ¥1,405402 ¥1,193,056 ¥1124225  ¥1,139,011 $12,733,322
Working capilal 240,417 241,786 171,326 199,747 169,221 2,037,432
Long-term debt 150,105 162,024 117,488 144 845 155,966 1,272,076
Total shareholdars' equity 659,637 606,484 481,019 391,082 315,443 5,590,144
Per common share and per 5 common shares data
{Yen and U.S. Dollars):
Income from continuing operations per common share:
Basic ¥60.00 ¥62.23 ¥80.97 ¥9.57 ¥6.56 $0.51
Diluted 60.00 61.76 78.91 9.34 6.56 0.51
Income from continuing operations per 5 comman shares:
Basic ¥300 ¥311 ¥405 ¥48 ¥33 $2.55
Diluted 300 309 395 47 33 2.55
Met income (loss) per cemmon share:
Basic ¥59.01 ¥62.14 ¥89.11 ¥8.72 ¥(5.84) $0.50
Diluted 59.01 61.67 86.83 8.53 (5.84) 0.50
Net incorme (loss} per 5 common shares:
Basic ¥295 ¥31 ¥448 ¥d4 ¥(29) $2.50
Diluted 295 308 434 43 {29 2.50
Shareholders’ equity per comman share outstanding ¥510.75 ¥466.71 ¥369.90 ¥201.81 ¥234.45 $4.33
Shareholders’ equity per 5 comman shares outstanding ¥2,554 ¥2,334 ¥1,849 ¥1,459 ¥1,172 $21.64
Cash dividends per common share ¥11 ¥9 ¥6 ¥6 ¥6 $0.09
Cash dividends per 5 common shares ¥55 ¥45 ¥30 ¥30 ¥30 $0.47

Notes:

1. The U.5. dollar amounts in this report represent transkations of Japanese yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥118=L5$1. See Note 1 to the consolidaied financial statements.

2. The Company has not accounted for a nonmonetary security exchange transaction that cccurred during the year ended March 31, 1997 in accordance with acceunting principles generally accept-

ed in the United States of America. See Note 1 to the consalidated financial statements.

3. Per share amounts have been cafculated per common share and per 5 common shares since each American Depository Share represents 5 shares of common stock.
4. Cash dividends per common share are based en dividends paid during the year.
5. The figures of the consolidated statements of income from 2003 through 2006 related to the retail finance business have been reciassifiec to conform to the current vear presentation. See Note 1

to the consofidated financtal statements.

&, In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal ef Long-Lived Assets™, the figures of the consclidated statements of income
for the prior years related 1o the discontinued cperations have begn separately reported from the ongoing operating results to conform with the current year presentation. See Note 19 to the con-

sotidated financial statements,
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Financial Review

1. REVENUES AND EARNINGS

Revenues
For the year ended March 31, 2007, revenues of the Company increased
¥61.7 billion (5.8%), to ¥1,127.5 billion ($9,555 miltion} from the prior year.

In the domestic market, revenues decreased ¥28.6 billion (4.5%}), to
¥603.5 hillion (85,114 million). Revenues in Internal Combustion Engine
and Machinery decreased due to lower sales of core farm equipment
even though sales of construction machinery and engines increased
steadily. Revenues in Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings also decfined
slightly owing to a decrease in sales of industrial castings, while sales of
ductile iron pipes and plastic pipes stayed at the same level as in the
prior year. Revenues in Environmentai Engineering decreased substantial-
ly due mainly to severe market conditions. On the contrary, revenues in
Other increased chiefiy due to sales expansion of vending machines.

On the other hand, revenues in overseas markets increased ¥90.3 bil-
lion (20.8%}, to ¥524.0 billion ($4,440 million} from the prior year. In North
America, sales of newly introduced mid-size tractors expanded substan-
tially and sales of construction machinery and engines also increased. In
Europe, sales of tractors, construction machinery, and engines all
increased. In Asia outside Japan, a large increase in sales of farm equip-
ment for rice farming continued. As a consequence, the ratic of overseas

revenues to consolidated revenues rose 5.8 percentage points, to 46.5%.

Revenues by industry segment
1) Internal Combustion Engine and Machinery
Revenues in Internal Combustion Engine and Machinery were ¥746.8 bil-
lion (86,329 miltion), 10.8% higher than the prior year, comprising 66.3%
of consolidated revenues. Domestic revenues decreased 4.1%, to ¥258.3
billion ($2,189 million), and overseas revenues increased 20.7%, to
¥488.5 billion {$4,140 million). This segment comprises farm equipment,
engines, and construction machinery.

in the domestic market, sales of farm equipment declined because of

lackluster market conditions. In the domestic market for farm equipment,

new government agricultural pelicies have been introduced, and the
implementation of these measures is resuiting in structural changes with-
in the agricultural sector, leading to a postponement of equipment pur-
chases, principally among medium-sized farms. Within this market
environment, to revitalize the operations, the Company implemented sales
expansion policies carefully tailored to various customer groups and was
able to increase its market share; however, these efforts did not compen-
sate for the market slump. On the other hand, sales of construction machin-
ery rose significantly due to steady demand for construction machinery, the
introduction of new models, and the expansion of sales to major machinery
rental companies. In addition, sales of engines, mainly to manufacturers of
construction and industrial machinery, showed steady expansion.

In overseas markets, sates of tractors, the Company's core product,
expanded steadily. In the United States, sales of mid-size tractors showed
marked expansion accompanying the introduction of new modeis, while
sales of small-sized tractors weakened along with the slowdown in housing
starts. In Europe, sales of tractors showed strong expansion as the Company
introduced new products and implemented an active marketing program.
Moreover, in Asia outside Japan, sales of tractors sustained a high rate of
growth in Thailand, where demand for tractors is expanding rapidly.

Sales of construction machinery reported steady expansion in Europe,
the principal overseas market of construction machinery, due to rising
demand coupled with the introduction of new products. Sales of con-
struction machinery in North America also increased. In addition, sales of
engines in Europe and the United States grew steadily, and sales of com-

hine harvesters in China increased rapidly.

2) Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings

Revenues in Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings were ¥194.2 billion
{51,646 million), 2.4% higher than the prior year, comprising 17.2% of con-
solidated revenues. Domestic revenues decreased 2.2%, to ¥163.4 billion
(81,385 million), and overseas revenues increased 36.7%, to ¥30.8 billion
($261 million). This segment comprises pipes, valves, and industrial castings.

Revenues
{Billions of Yen)

1,127.5
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In the domestic market, demand for ductile iron pipes and plastic pipes
was lackluster, but the Company was able to slightly increase sales of
plastic pipes by raising prices, while sales of ductile iron pipes declined
marginally. Sales of industrial castings expanded, mainly o the private
sector, such as the steel and energy industries, hut sales of products to
the public sector fell sharply.

In overseas markets, exports of ductile iron pipes to the Middle East
were robust, and sales of industrial castings continued to increase sub-

stantially, owing to high levels of private-sector capital expenditures.

3) Environmental Engineering
Revenues in Environmental Engineering were ¥90.6 billion {$768 million),
17.5% lower than the prior year, comprising 8.0% of consolidated rev-
enues. Domestic revenues decreased 17.6%, to ¥86.5 hillion ($733 mil-
lion}, and overseas revenues decreased 16.8%, to ¥4.1 billion {835
millien), This segment comprises environmantal control plants and pumps.
In the domestic market, the operating environment continued to be
extremely challenging because of the decline in public-sector demand and
the drop in sales prices due to more intense competition. In addition, sus-
pension of designated pre-approved suppliers due to compliance issues had
a major negative impact. As a result, the Water & Sewage Engineering
Division and Pumps Division suffered a substantial decline in revenue.
Overseas revenues also declined due to a decrease in sales of pumps, which

is the main expart product in this segment.

4) Other

Revenues in Other were ¥95.8 billion ($812 million), 4.1% higher than the
prior year, comprising 8.5% of consolidated revenues. Domestic revenues
increased 4.9%, to ¥95.3 billion ($808 million), and overseas revenues
decreased 60.0%, to ¥0.5 billion (34 million). This segment comprises
vending machines, electronic equipped machinery, air-conditioning equip-

ment, construction, septic 1anks, condominiums, and other business.

public sector as an original contractor. Sales of vending machines, con-
dominiums, and air-conditioning equipment increased favorably, while
sales of electronic equipped machinery and septic tanks declined.

Cost of Revenues, SG&A Expenses, and Loss from Disposal
and Impairment of Business and Fixed Assets
The cost of revenues increased 5.4% from the prior year, to ¥794.7 hillion
($6,735 million). The cost of revenues as a percentage of consolidated
revenues decreased 0.2 percentage peint, to 70.5%. The decrease in the
ratio was attributable to ongoing activities for cost reductions and con-
trols as well as the increased efficiency of the manufacturing process.
Selling, general, and administrative {SG&A) expenses increased 7.2%
from the prior year, to ¥199.4 hillion (51,689 million). The ratio of SG&A
expenses to revenues increased 0.2 percentage point, to 17.7%. This
increase was mainly due to increases in overseas subsidiaries’ SG&A
expenses resulting from sales expansion.
Loss from disposal and impairment of businesses and fixed assets
decreased 34.9% from the prior year, to ¥3.1 billion ($26 million). This

loss arose chiefly from the restructuring of construction businesses.

Bperating Income

Operating income climbed ¥9.3 billion (7.7%), to ¥130.3 billion ($1,105
million) from the prior year, the highest level in the Company’s history. By
segment, operating income in Internal Combustion Engine and Machinery
expanded substantially, supported by the increase in revenues and the
positive effect of the weakening of the yen. Pipes, Valves, and Industrial
Castings also reported a gain in operating income owing to continued
cost-cutting, including reductions in fixed expenses, and higher revenues
in overseas markets. Environmental Engineering, however, posted a sub-
stantial decline in profitability and reported an operating loss accompanying
the decline in sales prices. Operating income in Other, however, showed

steady expansion, as a result of increased sales of vending machines and

Sales of construction fell sharply because of the Company's realignment other products.
measures, including the discontinuance of receiving orders from the
(Operating Income
{Billians of Yen)
8.5 11.4 116
57
32 -
3
ch
%
‘03 '04 '05 08 07

© The ratio of operating income Lo revenues (%)
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Operating income or loss in each industry segment {before elimination
of intersegment profits and corporate expenses) was as follows: Internal
Combustion Engine and Machinery, operating income of ¥124.9 hillion
{1,059 million), a 12.9% increase; Pipes, Valves, and tndustrial Castings,
operating income of ¥22.0 billion ($187 million), a 14.3% increase;
Environmenta! Engineering, operating loss of ¥5.6 billion ($48 million), as
compared to operating income of ¥4.3 hillion; and Other, operating
income of ¥7.1 billion ($6C million), a 226.9% increase.

Other Income

Other income, net, was ¥1.2 billion ($10 million), a decrease of ¥18.2 bil-
lion from the prior year. The reason for this substantial decrease was the
ahbsence of a gain of ¥15.9 billion from the nonmonetary exchange of
securities of UFJ Holdings, Inc., resulting from the merger of Mitsubishi

Tokyo Financial Group, Inc., and UFJ Holdings, Inc., in the prior year.

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes, Minority
Interests in Earnings of Subsidiaries, and Equity in Net Jncome of
Affiliated Companies

Income from continuing operations before income taxes, minority inter-
ests in earnings of subsidiaries, and equity in net income of affiliated
companies was ¥131.6 billion ($1,115 million), a decrease of ¥9.0 billion

from the prior year.

Income Taxes, Minority Interests in Earnings of Subsidiaries,

and Equity in Net Income of Affiliated Gompanies

Income taxes decreased 12.7% from the prior year, to ¥49.0 billion (3415
million). The effective tax rate was 37.2%.

Minority interests in earnings of subsidiaries increased ¥1.3 billion, to
¥6.2 billion (8§53 million). Equity in net income of affiliated companies
decreased ¥0.3 billion from the prior year, to ¥1.4 billion ($11 million).
The increase in minority interests in earnings of subsidiaries resulted

from the favorable operating perfermances of overseas subsidiaries.

Income from Gontinuing Operations
Income from continuing operations was ¥77.7 billion ($659 million), com-

pared with ¥81.1 billion in the prior year,

Loss from Discontinued Operations, Net of Taxes

Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes, was ¥1.3 billion {§11 mil-
lion} in the year under review and ¥0.1 billion in the prior year. This loss
resulted from the withdrawal from industrial-waste disposal business and

the liquidity of a subsidiary engaged with that business.

Net Income

Due to the factors described above, net income decreased ¥4.6 billion, to
¥76.5 billion ($648 million). Return on shareholders’ equity decreased 2.8
percentage points, to 12.1%, from the prior year.

Income per ADS
Basic net income per ADS (five common shares) was ¥295 ($2.50}, as

compared to ¥311 in the prior year.

Dividends

The Company has decided to pay ¥35 per ADS as year-end cash divi-
dends, Accordingly, including the interim dividend of ¥25 per ADS already
paid, the total dividends for the entire fiscal year will be ¥60 per ADS,
which will be ¥10 per ADS higher than the prior year.

The Company’s basic policy for the return of profit to sharebolders is to
maintain stable dividends or raise dividends together with share buy-
backs and the canceilation of treasury stock. For reference’s sake, the
Company purchased 7.98 million shares outstanding (¥8.5 billion} and
retired 7.95 million shares of treasury stock (¥8.5 billion) during the year

under review.

Net Income (Loss)

{Billions of Yen)

179

‘05

06 07
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Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income was ¥67.3 billion ($570 million), ¥73.0 billion
lower from the prior year. This decrease was mainly due to a decrease in

unrealized gains on securities.

2. FINANCE AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

Finance and Liguidity Management

The Company’s financial policy is to ensure adequate financing and lig-
uidity for its operations and to maintain the strength of its balance sheet.
Through cash and cash equivalents, other current assets, cash flows pro-
vided by operating activities, and horrowing, the Company is in a position
to fully finance the expansion of its business, R&D, and capital expendi-
tures for current and future business projects. The specific methods of
obtaining financing available to the Company are borrowing from financial
institutions, the securitization of trade receivables, establishing commit-
ted lines of credit, and the issuance of bonds and commercial paper {CP)
in the capital markets.

Annual interest rates of shori-term borrowings ranged primarily from
0.81% to 5.77% at March 31, 2007, The weighted average interest rate on
such short-term borrowings was 5.3%. As for long-term debt, interest
rates were primarily fixed, and the weighted average interest rate on
such long-term debt at March 31, 2007 was 3.6%.

In North America, the Company maintains an accounts receivable secu-
ritization program of trade receivables and finance receivables. The
Company may sell both trade and finance receivables through independ-
ent securitization trusts. Trade receivables and finance receivables sold
under the securitization program are excluded from receivables in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Regarding the lines of credit, the Company has established committed
lines of credit totaling ¥20.0 billion (8169 million) with certain Japanese
banks, However, the Company currently does not use these lines. In the

United States, Europe, and Asia, the Company maintains adequate

uncommitted fines of credit with financial institutions. The Company also
maintains a CP pregram allowing for the issuance of CP of up to ¥100.0
billion ($847 million). There was no outstanding issue of CP as of the end
of March 2007,

The Company utilizes Group financing. With Group financing, the
Company centralizes and pursues the efficiency of cash management
domestically through the Kubota Cash Management System, under which
the excess or shortage of cash at most of its subsidiaries in Japan is
invested or funded, as necessary.

To maintain the strength of its balance sheet and help secure adequate
funding resources, the Company carefully monitors its interest-bearing
debt excluding debt related to sale financing programs. The Company is
providing sale financing programs to support machinery sales in North
America, Japan, and Thailand. The Company believes an increase of debt
related to sales financing programs is a result of business expansion, At
the end of March 2007, the amount of interest-bearing debt was ¥349.9
biliton ($2,965 million). Of the ¥349.9 billien, ¥329.9 billion was borrow-
ings from financial institutions, and the remaining ¥20.0 biltion consisted
of corperate bonds.

The amount of working capital decreased ¥1.4 biltion, to ¥240.4 billion
($2,037 million), from the prior year-end. Additionaily, the ratio of current
assets to current liabilities decreased 5.1 percentage points, to 141.7%.
The primary reasen for this decrease was an increase in the current por-
tion of long-term debt. There is some seasenality to the Company's lig-
uidity and capital resources because a high percentage of the notes and
accounts receivable from focal governments are collected during April
through June each year.

All things considered, the Company believes that it can support its cur-
rent and anticipated capital and operating expenditures for the foresee-
able future. The currencies in which the Company has its debt are mainly
Japanese yen and U.S. dollars. There are no restrictions regarding the

manner in which the funds may be used.

Total Assets
(Billions of Yen)

1.132.0
1,124.2

1.502.5

1.405.4
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Ratings

The Company has obtained a credit rating from Rating and Investment
Information, Inc. (R&!), a rating agency in Japan, to facilitate access to
funds from the capital market in Japan. The Company’s current ratings
are “A+" for long-term debt and “a-1” for short-term debt as of March
2007 and its outlook is stable. The Company's tavorable credit rating pro-

vides it access to capital markets and investors.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Assets

Total assets at the end of March 2007 amounted to ¥1,502.5 billien
{$12,733 million), an increase of ¥97.1 billion (6.9%) from the end of the
prior year.

Current assets were ¥817.1 billion ($6,925 million), an increase of
¥58.9 billion from the prior year-end. Current assets increased substan-
tially due mainly to increases in inventories and short-term finance
receivables resulting from business expansion in Internal Combustion
Engine and Machinery. Inventory turnover dropped 0.5 point, to 5.9 times.

In addition to the increase in current assets, investments and long-
term finance receivables increased ¥24.6 billion, to ¥398.9 billign ($3,381
million). Long-term finance receivables increased substantially resulting
from a sales increase in North America, while other investments
decreased owing to a decrease in the unrealized gain on securities.
Property, plant, and equipment increased ¥11.3 billion, to ¥237.6 billion
($2,014 million), due to an increase in capital expenditures, Other assets
stightly increased ¥2.3 billion, to ¥48.9 billion ($414 million).

Liabilities
Total liabilities amounted to ¥806.8 billion (36,837 million), an increase of
¥36.8 billion (4.8%) from the end of the prior year.

Current liabitities were ¥576.7 billion ($4,887 million), an increase of

¥60.2 billion from the prior year-end. Trade notes and accounts payable

increased due to an increase in inventories, and interest-bearing debt
increased due to increases in short- and long-term finance receivables. In
addition, income taxes payable also increased.

On the other hand, long-term liabilities decreased ¥23.4 billion, to
¥230.1 billion ($1,950 million), because accrued retirement and pension
costs decreased largely due to an application of a new accounting stan-

dard for pensions.

Minority Interests
Minority interests amounted to ¥36.1 billion ($306 million}, an increase of
¥7.2 billion (24.8%) from the end of the prior year as a result of favorable

results of operations of foreign subsidiaries.

Shareholders’ Equity
Total shareholders' equity amounted to ¥659.6 billion ($5,590 million), an
increase of ¥53.2 billion (8.8%) from the end of the prior year.

Retained earnings increased ¥53.7 billion, to ¥376.8 billion ($3,193 mil-
lion) from the prior year-end due to the recorded net income. Though the
unrealized gains on securities decreased, accumulated other comprehen-
sive income remained at the same level as the prior year-end due mainly
to the recorded pension liability adjustment with an application of the
new accounting standard for pensions. The Company repurchased ¥8.5
billion ($72,102 million} of treasury stock and retired ¥8.5 billion (71,898
million} during the year under review.

The shareholders’ equity ratio” was 43.9%, 0.7 percentage point higher
than at the prior year-end. The debi-to-equity ratic™ was 53.0%, 2.1 per-

centage points lower than at the prior year-end.

* Shareholders’ equity ratio = shareholders’ equity / total assets

** Debt-to-equity ratio = interest-bearing debt / shareholders’ equity

Total Shareholders’ Equity

(Billions of Yen)

8596

441
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© sharehalders equiy ratio {%)
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0ff-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company wlilizes accounts receivable securitization programs, which
are important for the Company fo broaden its funding sources and raise
cost-effective funds. In the programs, the Company sells the receivables
to wholly owned special-purpose entities (“SPEs"), which in turn transfer
the receivables to bankruptcy-remote independent securitization trusts
(the “Trusts™). At the time the receivables are sold to the Trusts, the
receivables are removed from the consolidated balance shest of the
Company. The Company retains servicing responsibilities and subordinat-
ed interests. The purchaser has no recourse to the Gompany’s other
assets for failure of debtors to pay when due. The Company’s interest in

sold receivables is subordinate to the purchaser’s interest, and the

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes contractual obligations at March 31, 2007.

Company serves as credit enhancements for the securities issued by the
Trusts. The value of the Company's interest in sold receivables is subject
to credit, repayment, dilution, and interest rate risks on sold receivables.
The Company is obligated to repurchase any receivable if the interest of
the administrative agent is materially adversely affected by a breach of
representation or warranty made by the SPEs.

The Company provides guarantees to distributors, including affiliated
companies, and customers for their borrowing from financial institutions.
The Company would have to perform under these guarantees in the event
of default on a payment within the guarantee periods. The maximum
potential amount of undiscounted future payments of these financial
guarantees as of March 31, 2007 was ¥949 million ($8,042 thousand).

Millions of Yen
Payments Due by Period
Less than Mora than
Year Ended March 31, 2007 Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Short-term borrowings ¥128,365 ¥128,360 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
Capital lease obligations 6,577 3,293 3,028 254 42
Long-term debt 214,957 68,176 114,603 19,046 13,132
Ceposits from customers 2,522 2,522 — — —
Operating lease obligations 1,785 682 680 178 245
Commitments for capital expenditures 3,819 3,819 — — —
Interest payments 13,082 6,269 5,888 744 181
Total ¥371,107 ¥213,086  ¥124199  ¥20,222 ¥13,600
Theusands of U.S. Dokars
Payments Oue by Period
Less than More than
Year Ended March 31, 2007 Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5years
Short-term borrowings $1,087,839 §i,087,839 $ — 8 — 3 —
Capital lease obligations 55,737 27,568 25,661 2,152 356
Long-term deht 1,821,670 977,763 971,212 161,407 111,288
Deposits from customers 21,373 21,373 — — —
Operating lease obligations 15,127 5,780 5,762 1,509 2.076
Commilments for capital expenditures 32,364 32,364 — — —
Interest payments 110,864 93,127 49,898 6,300 1,534
Tetal $3,144974  $1805814 $1,052,533 $171373  $115.254

The Company's contributions ta pension plans for the year ending March 31, 2008 are expected to be ¥13,562 million ($114,932 thousand).
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3. CASH FLOWS'

Net cash provided by operating activities during the year under review was
¥96.8 biilion ($821 million), an increase of ¥9.0 billion from the prior year.
Although net income decreased from the prior year, the Company’s cash
position was not affected, because the primary reason for the decrease of
net income was the absence of the gain on nonmonetary exchange of secu-
rities in the prior year. The increase in net cash provided by operating activ-
ities was mainly due to the favorable performance of business operations.

Net cash used in investing activities was ¥90.0 billion ($763 million), an
increase of ¥28.7 hillion from the prior year. Purchases of fixed assets
increased due to an increase in capital expenditures. In addition, cash
provided by proceeds from sales of property, plant, and equipment, pro-
ceeds from sales of investments, and proceeds from sales of finance
receivables decreased. Accordingly, net cash used in investing activities
increased substantialiy.

Net cash used in financing activities was ¥16.8 billion ($143 million},
an increase of ¥6.6 billion from the prior year. Although purchases of
treasury stock decreased, repayment of short-term borrowings and
increased cash dividends increased net cash used in financing activities.

As a result, incluging the effect of exchange rate changes, cash and cash
equivalents at the end of March 2007 were ¥82.6 billion ($700 million),

a decrease of ¥9.3 billion from the prior year.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States {“U.S.
GAAP"}, The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions on the selection and
application of significant accounting policies. The Company reviews these
estimates and assumptions periodically. Actual results may differ from
estimated results. The following critical accounting policies that affect
financial conditions and operations require management to make signifi-

cant estimates and assumptions:

Inventory Valuation

Completed real estate projects are stated at the tower of acquisition cost
or fair value, less estimated costs to sell. The fair values of those assets
are estimated based on the appraised values in the market. Land to he
developed and projects under development are carried at cost unless
those assets are impaired. If carrying amounts of those assets exceed the
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be realized from them, those
assets are considered impaired, and an impairment loss is measured

based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value

of those assets. If the market conditions and demand in the housing busi-
ness are less favorable than management’s projection, additional write-

downs may be required.

Impairment of Investments

The Company classifies all its debt securities and marketable equity
securities as available for sale. When a decline in the value of the mar-
ketable security is deemed to be other than temporary, the Company rec-
ognizes an impairment loss to the extent of the decline. In determining if
and when such a decline in value is other than temporary, the Company
evaluates the extent to which cost exceeds market value, the duration of
market declines, and other key measures. Other non-marketable securi-
ties are stated at cost and reviewed periodically for impairment. If equity
markets decline or operating results of the issuer of the security become

worse, additional impairment losses may be required in the future.

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

The Company evaluates the collectibility of the notes and accounts
receivable, with the estimate based on various judgments, including the
customers’ financial conditions, historical experience, and the current
economic circumstances. If the customers’ financial conditions or current
economic circumstances become worse, additional allowances may be

required in the future.

Deferred Tax Assets

The Company provides a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets with
a valuation allowance to adjust the carrying amount when it is more likely
than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The valuation of
deferred tax assets principally depends on the estimation of future taxable
income and tax planning strategies. If future taxable income is lower than
expected due to a change in econemic circumstances and poor eperating

results, significant adjustments to deterred tax assets may be required.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

When events and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of leng-
lived assets to be held and used may net be recoverable and the carrying
amounts of those assets exceed the undiscounted future cash flows, an
impairment loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying
value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived assets. Fair value is deter-
mined primarily using anticipated future cash flows discounted at a rate
commensurate with the risk involved. If estimates of future cash flows fall
below management’s projection due to an unexpected changg in econom-

ic circumstances, additional impairment may be required.
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Retirement and Pension Plans

Benefit obligations and periodic benefit cost are valued based on
assumptions developed by the Company and used by actuaries in calcu-
lating such amounts. These assumptions inctude the discount rate, retire-
ment rate, timing of estimated average promotion, mortality rate,
expected rate of return on plan assets, and other factors. These assump-
tions are based upon current statistical data and are reviewed every fis-
cal year.

To determine the discount rate, the Company considers current market
interest rates. The Company assumed that the discount rate was 2.5% for
the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005. A further decrease of
50 basis points in the discount rate would increase the benefit obligations
as of March 31, 2007 by approximately ¥8.1 billion {$69 million).

To determine the expected rate of return on plan assets, the Company
considers actual returns in the past 5 to 10 years, the current and expect-
ed components of plan assets, and anticipated market trends. An actual
return on plan assets in the past 10 years at March 31, 2007 was 3.4%,
and an asset allocation assumption was 55% on fixed income securities
with an expected rate of return of 1.0%, and 45% on equity securities
with an expected rate of return of 5.5% for the year ended March 31,
2006 and thereafter. The Company assumed that the long-term rate of
return on plan assets was 3.0% for the years ended March 31, 2007 and
2006, and 3.5% for the year ended March 31, 2005. A decrease of 50
hasis points in the expected rate of return on plan assets would result in
an increase of periodic benefit cost for the year ending March 31, 2008 of
approximately ¥0.5 billion ($4 miltion).

The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses in excess of 20%
of the larger of the projected benefit obligation or plan assets in the year
following the year in which such gains and losses were incurred, and
amortizes actuarial gains and losses between 10% and 20% over the
average participants’ remaining service period. Accordingly, significant
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses may have a material effect on
periodic benefit cost in the next fiscal year.

From the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Ptans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132 (R)." The Company recognizes its overfunded or under-
funded status of the defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or
liability in the consolidated balance sheets with a corresponding adjust-

ment to pension fiability adjustment in accumulated other comprehensive

income, net of tax, The adoption of the statement has no effect on the

consolidated statements of income.

Revenue Recognition for Long-Term Contracts

Long-term contracts are accounted for using the percentage of comple-
tion method. The Company believes that it is able to develop reasonably
dependable estimates of the extent of progress toward completion of
individual contracts. Concerning the methed of measuring the extent of
progress toward completion, the Company uses the cost-to-cost method
in measuring the extent of progress toward completion.

Generally, output measures are considered to be the best measures of
progress toward completion. But, in the case of the Company, most con-
tracts with customers include the delivery and installatton of component
units, Accordingly, the extent of progress toward completion cannot be
properly measured. The Company deems that the measuring method
based on the accrual cost method is the most appropriate. Among the
various input measure methods available, the Company believes the cost-
to-cost method to be preferable to athers, such as labor hours, labor cost,

machine hours, or material quantities,

The Company's senior management and the Board of Corporate
Auditors had proactive discussions about these critical accounting poli-
cies, and they agreed that estimates and assumptions were appropriate
in light of the current and expected market conditions, the Company's

businesses, and numerous other factors.
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5. BUSINESS RISKS

Declines in economic conditions in Kubota's major markets, includ-
ing private-sector capital expenditure, construction investment, and
domestic public investmenti, may adversely impact the resuits of
operations ot the Company.

Industrial and capital goods make up a substantial portion of the
Company's products. Accordingly, revenues of the Company may be sen-
sitive to declines in general economic conditions, including private-sector
capital expenditure, construction investment, and domestic public invest-
ment. In additien, governmental agricultural policies may affect domestic
sales of agriculture-related products. In overseas markets, especially
those of North America and Europe, sales of the Company's products,
such as utility/compact tractors, may also be adversely affected by
declines in general ecenomic conditions, including private consumption

and residential construction investment in those regions.

Fluctuations of foreign exchange rates, including a stronger yen,
may reduce revenues and adversely affect the results of operations
of the Company.

The Company has overseas revenues and manufacturing subsidiaries.
The financial results of each overseas subsidiary are consolidated into the
results of the parent company after translation into Japanese yen. In
addition, the transactions between the parent company and overseas
subsidiaries or customers are generally denominated in the local curren-
cies. The payments received in local currencies on such transactions are
converted to Japanese yen. As a result, fluctuations in foreign exchange

rates will affect the consolidated financial results.

The Company is subject to the risks of international operations.

In some businesses of the Company, substantial overseas operations are

conducted. Accordingly, the Company is subject to a number of risks

inherent in doing business in those markets. Such risks may affect rev-

enues and profitability of the Company or they may hinder growth of the

Company in specific countries. The following risks are important concerns

for the Company:

« Unexpected changes in international, or in an individual country's, tax
requlations

* Unexpected legal or regutatory changes in a country

+ Difficulties in retaining qualified personne!

* Underqualified technological skills or instability between management
and employee unions in developing countries

« Political instability in those countries

The major markets with the previously mentioned risks are markets in the
United States, the EU, and Asian countries. Among the United States, the EU,
and Asian countries, which are major markets for the Company, risks in

Asian countries seem to be relatively higher than those of other regions.

The Company utilizes estimates on some accounts in the consoli-
dated financial statements, which may require additional accruals
due to unanticipated changes in the basis of assumptions.

The Company appropriately records its employee benefit obligations, val-
uation of inventories, valuation allowances for deferred tax assets, proba-
hility of collection of notes and accounts receivable, impairment losses on
long-lived assets, and revenue recognition for long-term contracts in the
consolidated financia! statements based en the information that it has
available. However, these are based on various assumptions about future
economic results. If actual results differ from any of these assumptions,

unanticipated additiona! accruals may be required.

Strategic alllances, mergers, and acquisitions may not generate
successful results as planned.

The Company expects to use strategic alliances, mergers, and acquisi-
tions to seek further growth. The success of these activities depends on
such factors as the Company’'s business environment, the ability of its
business counterparts, and whether the Company and its counterparis
share common goals. Theretore, if these activities are not successful and
returns on related investments are lower than expected, the Company
may lose competitiveness in relevant markets. Consequently, the

Company's profitability may deteriorate.

The Company may not be able to successfully create new business-
es or businesses complementary to the current ones.

As part of its structural renovation, the Company is attempting to cultivate
new businesses or businesses that are complementary to the current
ones. However, in those markets, there are numerous competitors, and
competition will be very harsh. If the Company fails to develop the
required personnel or abilities to produce and market appropriate prod-
ucts, subsequent impairment charges may be taken, or there may be a

negative impact on the Company’s financial position.
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Impairment losses on investments in marketable securities may
occur as a result of stock market fluctuations.

As of March 31, 2007, the Company owns securities with a fair value of
approximately ¥203.7 billion (81,726 million). Most of these securities are
equity securities, and, accordingly, depending on stock market fluctua-

tions, unrealized and realized losses may occur.

In each of its businesses, Kubota is subject to intensifying competi-
tive pressures. The Company must compete successtully to main-
tain revenues and profits.

The Company is exposed to severe competition in each of its businesses.
Unless the Company surpasses other companies in such areas as terms
of trade, R&D, and quality, revenues and/or net income may decrease in

the future.

The Company may be required to incur significant financial expens-
es if its products and services are alleged to have seripus defects.

If the Company’s products and services are alleged to have serious
defects, the Company may have liability for significant damages. Such
damages and other associated expenses may have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position. If
such claims are asserted, the Company may lose the confidence of the
public and suffer a reduction in its brand value, which may result in

decreased revenues or demand for its products.

The Company is subject to various environmental laws and regula-
tlons, and may be required to incur considerable expenses in order
to compty with such laws and regulations.

The Company is subject to varipus environmental laws and regulations
that apply to its products and activities. If these environmental laws and
regulations, such as those that impose carbon dioxide emission cantrols,
emission controls, and usage restrictions for certain materials which are
used in the Company's products, are strengthened or newly established
in jurisdictions in which the Company conducts its businesses, the
Company may be required to incur considerable expenses in order to
comply with such laws and regutations. Such expenses may have a mate-
rial effect on the Company's consolidated results of operations and finan-
cial position. To the extent that the Company determines that it is not
economical to continue to comply with such laws and regulations, the
Company may have to curtail or discontinue its activities in the atfected

business areas.

The Company may be required to incur significant expenses in con-

nection with environmental damage fts activities may allegedly cause.
Claims may arise that the Company's activities have caused environmen-
tal contamination, including the refease of hazardous materials or air pol-
lution, water pollution, andfor soil contamination. in such an event, the
Company may elect or be required to implement costly corrective actions
to resolve any issues associated with the release or presence of such
hazardous materials or contamination and may face associated litigation.
These factors may have a material effect on the Company's consolidated

results of operations and financial position.

The Company may be required to incur significant expenses
relevant to asbestos-related issues.

The Company previously manufactured products containing asbestos
from 1954 to 2001, The Company may be required to incur various
expenses, including payments to the individual concerned or face faw-
suits related to the asbestos-related health hazards of employees (includ-
ing former employees} who engaged in the manufacturing of products
containing asbestos, and residents who lived near the Company's factory
at which these products were manufactured. If such expenses become
significant or any lawsuits result in judgments unfavorable to the
Company, there may be a material adverse effect on the Company's con-

solidated resuits of operations, financial pesition, and its liguidity.

The Company may experience a material effect on its consolidated
results of operations and financial position it it faces issues selated
to compliance.

The Company has declared its intention to conduct its corporate activities
in compliance with legal regulations and ethical principles, and to exert
efforts to cause all management and staft of the Group companies not to
act in violation of various legal regulations, ethical standards or internal
regulations. However, in the event that compliance issues arise notwith-
standing such efforts, there is a possibility that the Company may be sub-
ject to disciplinary action by government ministries supervising its
activities or to lawsuits, or may suffer a loss of public confidence, that
could have a material effect on the Company's consolidated results of

operations and financial position.
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Damage by natural disasters

Japan is a country with frequent garthquakes. In case of a strong earth-
quake or related tidal wave, the Company may be affected in the opera-
tion of its manufacturing, logistics, and sales activities, and may lose
revenues and profits depending on the severity of the earthquake or tidal
wave. Japan also is hit by fyphoons very frequently. In case major plants
are struck by a large and powerful typhoon, the Company's operations
may suffer great losses.

6. MARKET RISKS

Derivatives

To offset currency and interest rate fluctuation risks, the Company uses
various types of derivatives, including foreign exchange forward con-
tracts, currency swaps, and interest rate swaps. As a basic policy, the
Company conducts its derivative transactions within the range of its out-
standing credit and obligations, and the Company does not engage in
speculative derivative transactions. The counterparties for the Company's
derivative transactions are financial institutions with high creditworthi-
ness; therefore, the Company does not anticipate any credit losses on
such transactions. For more specific details, please refer to Note 15 to

the consolidated financial statements.

7. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

R&D expenses were ¥22.9 billion ($194 million), an increase of ¥0.2 bil-
lion from the prior year, and its ratio to revenues declined 0.13 percent-
age point, to 2.03%. R&D expenses were mainly spent on R&D activities

of the Internal Combustion Engine and Machinery segment.

8. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures amounted to ¥44.7 billion {8379 million), a 32.3%
increase from the prior year. Capital expenditures were spent primarily on
expanding production capacity, including building a new factory, and
acquiring land. The amount of depreciation expense was ¥25.1 billion
($213 militon), ¥0.1 billion less than the prior year. The funds for these
capital expenditures were mainly provided by inlernal operatiens. The
principal capital expenditures as of March 31, 2007 were related to

expansion of capacity for engine manufacturing.

9. MATTERS RELATED TO THE HEALTH HAZARD OF ASBESTOS

Background

Until 1995, the Company’s plant in Amagasaki, Hyogo Prefecture, which is
now a Company office, had produced products containing asbestos. In
April 2005, the Company was advised that some residents who lived near
the former plant suffered from mesothelioma, a form of cancer that is
said to be mainly caused by the aspiration of ashestos. After discussing
this issue with those patients and their private support groups, and delib-
erating internally and consulting with outside advisers, the Company
announced its intention in June 2005 to act seriously and faithfully con-
cerning various issues of the health hazard of ashestos from the view-
peint of corporate social responsibility (CSR) as a company that had once
manufactured products containing asbestos for a long time.

According to the Company’s basic policy, the Company started the pro-
gram of consolaticn payments to patients with mesothelioma who lived
near the former plant and to the families of residents who died from
mesothelioma. In April 2006, the Company decided to establish the relief
payment system in place of the consolation payment system and make
additional payment to the residents to whom consolation payment or con-
dolence payment were eligible to be paid or payable.

With regard to current and former employees of the Company who are
suffering from, or died of, asbestos-related diseases, the GCompany has
paid, or is paying, compensation in accordance with policies that were
established in the early 1990s, which include compensation for medical
expenses, special health checkups for retired employees, and certain
additional payments to workers’ compensation that are not required by
law but are voluntarily made by the Company.

As a result of the ashestos issue becoming an object of public concern,
the Japanese government newly established the Law for the Relief of
Patients Suffering from Asbestos-Related Diseases (“New Ashestos Law™)
in March 2006. Based on the New Asbestos Law, a Fund for the Relief of
Patients Suffering from Asbestos-Related Diseases (the “Fund”) was
established, and the Fund, from which the relief aid is paid, is funded by
the naticnal government, municipal governments, and business entities.
The payment of contribution to the Fund by each business entity shall

commence from the year ending March 31, 2008.
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Contingencies Regarding Ashestos-Related Matiers

The Company expenses the payments for the health hazard of ashestos
based on the Company’s policies and procedures. The amounts of these
expenses during the year under review were approximately ¥4.0 billion.
The Company befieves il is not possible to reasonably estimate the
amount of its ultimate liability relating to ashestos issues. However, the
Company believes asbestos-related issues contain potentially material
risks for the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial posi-

tion, and its liquidity.

10. OUTLOOK FOR THE NEXT FISCAL YEAR

Financial Outlook

The Company forecasts consolidated revenues for the year ending March
31, 2008 will slightly increase from the year under review. In the domes-
tic market, revenues in Pipes, Valves, and Industrial Castings are expect-
ed to increase. However, revenues in Internal Combustion Engine and
Machinery are forecast to decrease slightly and revenues in
Environmental Engineering and Other are forecast to decrease substan-
tially. As a result, total domestic revenues are estimated to decrease from
those of the year under review, As for overseas revenues, the Company
expects higher revenues than in the year under review due to steady
expansion of revenues in Interna! Gombustion Engine and Machinery.

The Company forecasts that operating income will almost be at the
same level as in the year under review. Although a favorable swing of
exchange rates mainly against the euro as well as corporate-wide cost
reductions will have a tavorable effect on profitability, the price increases
in raw materials will cause downward pressure on operating income. The
Company expects income from continuing operations before income
taxes, minority interests in earnings of subsidiaries, and equity in net
income of affiliated companies, and net income for the next fiscal year to

be aiso aimost at the same level as in the year under review.

Gautionary Statements with Respect to Forward-Looking Statements
This document may contain ferward-looking statements that are based on
management’s expectations, estimates, projections, and assumptions.
These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
certain 7isks and uncertainties, which are ditficult 10 predict. Theretore,
actual future results may differ materially from what is forecast in the for-
ward-looking statements due to a variety of factors, including, and with-
out limitation, general economic conditions in the Company’s markets,
particularly government agricultural policies; levels of capital expendi-
tures, both in the public and private sectors; foreign currency exchange
rates; gontinued competitive pricing pressures in the marketplace; as
well as the Company’s ability to continue to gain acceptance of its prod-
ucts among the public.
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B SEGMENT INFGRMATION
The following segment information for the years ended March 31, 2007 Exchange Law of Japan, Is not consistent with accounting principles gen-

and 2006, which is required under the regulations of the Securities and erally accepted in the United States of America.

Industry Segments
Millions of Yen
Internal Pipes,
Combustion Valves, Corporate
Engine & & Industrial Environmental &
Year Ended March 31, 2007 Machinery Castings Engineering Other Total Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers ¥746,808 ¥194,224 ¥90,613 ¥ 95811 ¥1,127,456 ¥ - ¥1,127,456
Intersegment 22 768 340 16,893 18,023 (18,023} —
Total 746,830 194,992 90,953 112,704 1,145,479 (18,023} 1,127,456
Cost of revenues and operzting expenses 621,926 172,985 96,568 105,577 997,056 53 997,109
Operating income {loss) ¥124,904 ¥ 22,007 ¥(5,615) ¥ 7,127 ¥ 148,423 ¥(18,076) ¥ 130,347
Identifiable assets at March 31, 2007 ¥862,298 ¥197,555 ¥68,742 ¥ 97,192 ¥1,225787 ¥276,745 ¥1,502,532
Depreciation 16,241 4,776 590 1,305 22912 2,182 25,094
Loss from impairment 12 —_ 138 — 150 298 448
Capital expenditures 30,308 4,549 647 1,830 37,334 7,381 44,715
Millions of Yen
Internal Pipes,
Combustion Valves, Corporate
Engine & & Industrial Environmental &
Year Ended March 31, 2006 Machinery Castings Engineering Other Total Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers ¥674,087 ¥189,708 ¥109,864 ¥ 92077 ¥1,065736 ¥ — ¥1,065,736
Intersegment 40 2,184 209 15,176 17.609 (17,609 —
Total 674127 181,892 110,073 107,253 1,083,345 (17,609 1,065,736
Cost of revenues and operating expenses 563.517 172,637 105,783 105,073 947,010 (2,332) 344,678
Operating incame ¥110,610 ¥ 19,255 ¥ 4,290 ¥ 2180 ¥ 136,335 ¥ (15,277) ¥ 121,068
Identifiable assets at March 31, 2006 ¥760,001 ¥181,740 ¥ 92,996 ¥ 81,461  ¥1.116,198 ¥289,204 ¥1,405,402
Depreciation 15,284 5,308 575 1,492 22,659 2,508 25,167
Loss from impairment 61 82 59 836 1,038 — 1,038
Capital expenditures 25,482 3,585 389 1,479 30,835 2870 33,800
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Internal Pipes,
Combustion Valves, Corporate
Engine & & Industrial Environmental &
Year Ended March 31, 2007 Machinery Castings Engineering Other Tetal Eliminations Consolicated
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers $6,328,881  $1,645,966 $767,907 $811,958 § 9,554,712 § — $ 9,554,712
Intersegment 187 6,508 2,881 143,161 152,737 {152,737} —
Total 6,329,068 1,662,474 770,788 955,119 9,707,449 (152,737) 9,554,712
Cost of revenues and operating expenses 5,270,560 1,465,974 818,373 894,720 8,449,627 449 8,450,076
Operating income {loss) $1,058508 $ 186,500 $ (47,585) $ 60,399 $ 1,257,822 $ (153,186) $ 1,104,636
tdentifiable assets at March 31, 2007 $7,307,610 $1,674,195 $582,559 $823,661 $10,388,025 $2,345,207 $12,733,322
Depreciation 137,636 40,474 5,000 11,059 194,169 18,492 212,661
Loss from impairment 102 — 1,169 — 1,21 2,526 3,797
Capital expenditures 256,847 38,551 5,483 15,509 316,380 62,551 378,911

Notes: 1. The Company changed the presentation of finance income and expenses from etail finance business, which are classified into *Revenues” and "Cost of revenues and operating expenses”.
2. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Dispesal of Long-Lived Assets™, the results of operations related to discontin-
ved operations are eliminated from *Environmental Engineering”, “Totat”, and “Consclidated”,
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Geographic Segments

Millions of Yen
Carporate
&
Year Ended March 31, 2007 Japan North America Other Areas Tetal Etminations Cansolidated
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers ¥637,881 ¥325,188 ¥164,387 ¥1,127,456 ¥ —_ ¥1,127.456
Intersegment 270,392 7,392 5,843 283,627 (283,627) —_
Total 908,273 332,580 170,230 1,411,083 (283,627) 1,127,456
Cost of revenues and operating expenses 810,520 297,951 152,193 1,260,664 (263,555) 997,109
Cperating income ¥ 97,753 ¥ 34629 ¥ 18,037 ¥ 150,419 ¥ (20,072) ¥ 130,347
Identifiable assets at March 31, 2007 ¥745,943 ¥452 994 ¥131,412 ¥1,330,349 ¥172,183 ¥1,502,532
Millions of Yen
Corporate
&
Year Ended March 31, 2008 Japan Nerth America Other Areas Total Eiminations Consolidated
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers ¥660,379 ¥286,335 ¥119,022 ¥1,065,736 ¥ — ¥1,065,736
Intersegment 250,976 4934 4070 259,980 (259,980) —
Total 911,355 291,269 123,692 1,325,716 (259,980) 1,065,736
Cost of revenues and operating éxpenses 807,438 264,498 111,616 1,183,553 (236,675} 944,678
Oparating income ¥103,916 ¥ 26,771 ¥ 11,476 ¥ 142,163 ¥ (21,105) ¥ 121,058
Identifiable assets at March 31, 2006 ¥730,366 ¥390122 ¥ 80,353 ¥1,200,841 ¥204,561 ¥1,405,402
Thougands of US. Dollars
Comgrate
3
Year Ended March 31, 2007 Japan North America Qther Areas Total Erminatons Consolidated
Revenues:
Unaffiliated customers $5,405, 711 $2,755,831 $1,393,110 $ 9,554,712 $ — $ 9,554,712
Intersagment 2,291,457 62,644 49,517 2,403,618 (2,403,618) —
Total 7,697,228 2,818,475 1,442,627 11,958,330 (2,403,618) 9,554,712
Cost of revenues and operating expenses 6,868,813 2,525,009 1,289,771 10,683,593 (2,233,517) 8,450,076
Operating income $ 828,415 $ 293,466 $ 152,856 $ 1,274,737 $ (170,101) $ 1,104,636
Identifiable assets at March 31, 2007 $6,321,551 $3,838,932 $1,113,661 $11,274144 $1,459,178 $12,733,322

Notes: 1. The Company changed the presentation of finance income and expenses from retail finance businass, which are cfassified into “Revenues” and "Cest of revenues and operating expenses”.
2.In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the results of operations related to discontinued operations are eliminated from “Japan”, *Total”, and "Consolidated”,

Revenues by Region
Thousands of
Millions of Yen 11.S. Doltars
Years Ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 2007 2006 2007
Japan ¥ 603,502 535% ¥ 632,128 59.3% $5,114,424
Overseas:
North America 323,002 287 284586 267 2,738,068
Other Areas 200,862 17.8 143,022 140 1,702,220
Substotal 523954 465 433,608 407 4,440,288
Total ¥1,127,456 100.0% ¥1,065736 100.0% $9,554,712

Nates: 1. Hevenues by region represent revenues to unaffiliated customers based on the customers' locations,

2. The Company changed the presentation of finance income from retail finance business, which is classifisd info “Revenues”.
3. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, revenues from discontinued operations are eliminated from “Japan” and “Total”.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
Kubota Corporation and Subsidiaries  March 31, 2007 and 2006

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 1)
ASSETS 2007 2006 2007
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 82,601 ¥ 01,858 $ 700,008
Notes and accounts receivable (Notes 3, 6, 7, 10 and 18):
Trade notes 82,491 70,007 699,076
Trade accounts 235,728 242 865 1,997,695
Less: Allowance for doubtfu! notes and accounts receivable {2,011) (2,155) (17,042)
Short-term finance receivables—net (Notes 5, 7 and 18} 97,798 79,116 828,797
Inventories {Note 2) 205,658 175,660 1,742,864
Other current assets (Notes 12 and 18) 114,835 100,873 973,178
Total current assets 817,100 758,224 6,924,576
Investments and long-term finance receivables:
Investments in and advarces to affillated companies (Nete 3) 13,754 13,145 116,559
Other investments (Note 4) 215,130 236,629 1,823,136
Long-term finance receivables—net (Notes 5, 7 and 18) 170,031 124,509 1,440,941
Total investments and long-term finance receivables 398,915 374,283 3,380,636
Property, plant, and equipment (Note 7):
Land 90,416 82,978 766,237
Buildings 208,529 203,985 1,767,195
Machinery and equipment 362,732 367,150 3,074,000
Construction in progress 8,216 6,236 69,627
Total 669,893 660,349 5,677,059
Accumulated depreciation {432,247) (433,977) {3,663,110)
Net property, plant, and equipment 237,646 226,372 2,013,949
Other assets (Notes 6, 8 and 12) 48,871 46,523 414,161
Total ¥1,502,532 ¥1,405,402 $12,733,322
See notes to conselidated financial statements.
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Thousands of

.S, Doliars
Millions of Yen {Note 1)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2007 2008 2007
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings (Note 7} ¥ 128,365 ¥ 132,209 $ 1,087,839
Trade notes payable 30,487 33,560 258,364
Trade accounts payable 206,808 186,901 1,752,610
Advances received from customers 3,699 7,311 31,347
Motes and accounts payable for capital expenditures 20,895 13,348 177,076
Accrued payroll costs 28,277 24,310 239,636
Accrued expenses 32,498 28,587 275,407
Income taxes payable 23,945 12,376 202,924
Other current liabilities (Notes 12 and 17) 30,280 27,816 256,610
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 71,429 50,020 605,331
Total current liabilities 576,683 516,438 4,887,144
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term dabt (Note 7) 150,105 162,024 1,272,076
Accrued retiremant and pension costs (Note 8) 27,306 53,633 231,407
Other long-term liabilities (Note 12) 52,732 47,925 446,881
Total long-term liabilities 230,143 253,582 1,950,364
Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Minority interests 36,069 28,898 305,670
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 9 and 14):
Common stock,
authorized 1,874,700,000 shares in 2007 ang 2006, respectively
outstanding 1,291,512,741 shares and 1,299,487,964 shares in 2007 and 2006, respectively 84,070 84,070 712,458
Capital surplus 93,150 93,150 789,407
Legal reserve 19,539 19,539 165,585
Retained eamings (Note 3) 376,815 323,116 3,193,347
Accumulated other cemprehensive income 86,247 86,769 730,907
Treasury stock (406,439 shares and 381,216 shares in 2007 and 2006, respectively), at cost (184) (160) {1,560)
Total sharehalders’ equity 659,637 606,484 5,590,144
Total ¥1,502,532 ¥1,405,402 $12,733,322

Kubota Corporation 27




Consolidated Statements of Income

Kubota Corporation and Subsidiaries  Years Ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

Thousands of

U.S, Collars
Millions of Yen {Note 1)
2007 2008 2005 2007
Revenues (Notes 3 and 5) ¥1,127.456 ¥1,0685,736 %994 483 $9,554,712
Cost of revenues (Note 5) 794,687 753,952 716,495 6,734,635
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 199,356 186,017 182,498 1,689,458
Loss from disposal and impairment of businesses and fixed assets {Note 16) 3,066 4709 1414 25,983
Operating income 130,347 121,058 94,076 1,104,636
Other income (expenses):
Interest and dividend income 3,283 2,807 1,942 27,822
Interest expense (1,219) {1,156) {1,662 (10,330)
(Gain on sales of securities—net (Note 4} 1,313 4703 1,604 11,127
(Gain on nonmonetary exchange of securities (Note 1) 997 15901 — 8,449
Subsidy from the government (Note 8) — — 58,571 —
Other—net (Note 11) (3,156) (2,792) 1,835 (26,746)
Other income, net 1,218 19,463 62,290 10,322
Income from continuing operations before income taxes, minority interests
in earnings of subsidiaries, and equity in net income of affiliated companies 131,565 140,521 156,366 1,114,958
Income taxes (Note 12):
Current 48,008 34,433 34,491 406,848
Deferred 953 21,634 13,625 8,076
Total income taxes 48,961 56,067 48,116 414,924
Minority interests in earnings of subsidiaries 6,214 4,938 3442 52,661
Equity in net income of affiliated companies (Note 3) 1,353 1,633 2324 11,466
Income from continuing operations 77,743 81149 107,132 658,839
Income {loss} from discontinued operations, net of taxes (Note 19) (1,286) {115) 10,769 (10,898)
Net income ¥ 76457 ¥ 81034 ¥117,90 $ 647,941
.8, Dollars
Yen {Note 1)
Net income (loss) per common share (Note 13):
Basic:
Gontinuing operations ¥60.00 ¥62.23 ¥80.97 $0.51
Discontinued operations (0.99) (0.09} 8.14 {0.01}
Net income ¥59.01 ¥62.14 ¥80.11 $0.50
Diluted:
Continuing operations ¥60.00 ¥61.76 ¥78.91 $0.51
Discentinued operations (0.99) {0.09) 7.92 (0.01)
Net income ¥59.01 ¥61.67 ¥86.83 $0.50

See notes ta consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Kubota Corperation and Subsidiaries  Years Ended March 31, 2007, 20086, and 2005
Thousands of
US. Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 1)
2007 2006 2005 2007
Net income ¥76,457 ¥ 81,034 ¥117.901 $647,941
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (Note 14):
Foreign currency translation adjustments 4,670 13.570 (1,468) 39,576
Unrealized gains ({losses) on securities {13,607) 45017 517 {115,313)
Minimum pension liability adjustment — — 3,492 —
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives (244) 675 (1,109) (2,088)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (9,181) 59,262 1,432 (77,808)
Comprehensive income ¥67,276 ¥140,296 ¥119,333 $570,136
See notes to consolidated financial statements,
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Kubota Corporation and Subsidiaries  Years Ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
Millions ¢f Yen
Shares of Accumulated
Common Stock Other Treasury
Dutstanding Common Capital Legal Retained Comprehensive Stock
(Thousanis) Stock Surplus Reserve Earnings Income (LoSS) at Cost
Balance, March 31, 2004 1,340,197  ¥78,156 ¥87,263  ¥19,539 ¥204,156 ¥26,075 ¥(24.107)
Net income 117,901
Other comprehensive income 1,432
Cash dividends, ¥6 per commaon share {7,989
Purchases of troasury stock (39,784) (21,407)
Retirement of treasury stock (23,881) 23,881
Balance, March 31, 2005 1,300,413 78,156 87,263 19,539 290,187 27 507 (21,633
Net income 81,034
Other comprehensive income 59,262
Cash dividends, ¥9 per common share (11,769
Purchases of treasury stock (16,285) (14,863)
Retirement of treasury stock {36,336) 36,336
Conversion of bonds 15,360 5,914 5,887
Balance, March 31, 2006 1,299,488 84,070 93,150 19,539 323116 86,769 (160)
Net income 76,457
Other comprehensive loss (9,181)
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of taxes 8,659
(Cash dividends, ¥11 per common share (14,274)
Purchases of treasury stock (7,975) (8,508}
Retirement of treasury stack (8,484) 8,484
Balance, March 31, 2007 1,201,513  ¥84,070 ¥93,150 ¥19539  ¥376,815 ¥86,247 ¥ (184)
Thousands of LS. Dollars (Hote 1)
Accumulated
Other Treasury
Commen Capital Legal Retained Comprehensive Stock
Stock Surplus Reserve Earnings Income (Loss) at Cost
Balance, March 31, 2006 $§712,458 $789,407 $165,385 $2,738,271 $735331 § (1,356)
Net income 647,941
; Cther comprehensive loss (77,809)
Adjustment to initfally apply SFAS No. 158, net of taxes 73,381
Cash dividends, $0.09 per cemmon share (120,967)
Purchases of treasury stock (72,102)
Retirement of treasury stock {71,898) 71,898
Balance, March 31, 2007 $712,458 $789,407 $165585 $3,193,347  $730,907 $ (1,560)

See notes 10 consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Kuhata Corporation and Subsidiaries  Years Ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 1)
2007 2006 2005 2007
Operating activities:
Met income ¥ 76,457 ¥ 81034 ¥ 117 901 $ 647,941
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 27,097 25,821 25808 229,635
Subsidy from the government — — (58 571) —
Gain on sales of securities (1,313) (4,703) {1,604) (11,127}
Gain on nonmonetary exchange of securities (997) (15,901) — (8,449)
Minority interests in earnings of subsidiaries 6,214 4938 3442 52,661
Equity in net income of affiliated companies (1,353) {1,633 (2,324) (11,466)
Deferrad income taxes 953 21,634 13,625 8,076
Change in assets and fiabilities, net of effects from sates and transfer of businesses:
{Increasa} decrease in notes and accounts receivable 35 11,099 {19,540) 297
Increase in inventorias (24,255) {11,736) 8,129 (205,551)
Increase in cther current asgets (3,935) {10,559 {15,159) (33,347)
Increase (decrease) in trade notes and accounts payable 11,999 {4,080 22404 101,686
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payahle 11,305 {167) (3,363 95,805
Increase in cther current liabilities 5,085 4,408 3,151 43,093
Decrease in accrued retirement and pension costs (10,942) {12,514) {7,306) (92,729}
Other 480 196 {3,427) 4,068
Net cash previded by cperating activities 96,830 87,857 66,908 820,593
Investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets (34,286) {25,680) {20,818) {290,559)
Purchases of investments and change in advances (1,311) 442 {495) (11,110)
Proceeds from sales of properly, plant, and equipmeant 3,709 5,568 2,769 31,432
Proceeds from sates cf investments 2,391 8,499 2,981 20,263
Proceeds from sate of business — 218 1,117 —
Increase in finance receivables (190,098) (142,393} {119,878) (1,611,000)
Collection of finance receivables 129,442 80,163 53,575 1,096,966
Sales of finance recelvables — 11,753 5,208 —
Nel decrease in short-term investments — — 3,001 —
Cash transferred in sale of a business — — {6,048) —_
Other 146 138 360 1,237
Net cash used in investing activities (90,007) (61,292) (78,228) (762,771}
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 86,434 88,829 39,582 732,492
Repaymenis of lgng-term debt (73,654) (71,719 (39.081) (624,186)
Net increase (dacrease) in short-term borrowings (5,937) 335 34,453 {50,314)
Cash dividends (14,274) {11,769 (7.989) {120,967}
Purchases cf treasury stock (8,515} {14,898) (21,451) (72,161)
Other (889} {964) (1,006) (7,533}
iNet cash provided by (used in) financing activities (16,835} {10,186) 4508 (142,669)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 755 916 154 6,398
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {9,257} 17,295 (6,658) (78,449)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 91,858 74,563 81,221 778,457
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ¥ 82,601 ¥ 91,858 ¥ 74,563 $ 700,008

See notes to consolidated financiat statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Kubota Corporation and Subsidiaries  Years Ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business
Kubata Corporation (the “parent company”} and subsidiaries (coliectively the
“Company”) are one of Japan's leading manufacturers of a comprehensive
range of machinery and ¢ther industrial and consumer progucts, including
farm equipment, engines, pipe and fluid systems engingering, industrial cast-
ings, environmental control plants, and housing materials and equipment.
The manufacturing operations of the Company are conducted primarily
at 20 plants in Japan and at 8 overseas plants located in the United States and
certain other countries. Farm equipment, construction machinery, ductile iron
pipe, and certain other products are sold both in Japan and overseas markets
which consist mainly of North America, Europe, and Asia.

Basis of Financial Statements
The consclidated financial statements are presented in accordance with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America {“US GAAPY)
with the exception of FASB Emerging lssues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 91-
5, “Nonmonetary Exchange of Cost-Methed Investments” (see Investments).
The presentation of segment informaticn required by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards {"SFAS™) No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related information,” has also been omitted.

Certain reclassifications have been made 1o the consolidated financial
statements for 2006 and 2005 to conform with classifications used in 2007.

Translation into United States Dollars

The parent company and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their accounts
in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which they are incorporated
and principally operate. The United States dollar amounts inchuded herein
represent & translation using the approximate exchange rate at March 37,
2007 of ¥118=US$1, solely for convenience of readers outside Japan.

The translation should not be construed as a representation that the yen
amounts have bean, could have been, or could in the future be, converted
into United States dollars.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent
company and all majority-owned subsidiaries. The accounts of certain con-
solidated subsidiaries that have December 31 fiscal year-ends have been
included in the March 31 consolidated financial statements. The accounts
of variable interest entity {*VIE") as defined by the FASE Interpretation No. 46
(revised December 2003}, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”
{“FIN46R") are included in the consolidated financial statements, as applicable.

The Company is involved with a VIE which engages in sales activities with-
in the Internal Combusticn Engine and Machinery segment, The VIE has been
consclidated by the Campany in accordance with FINAGR.

Total assets of the VIE at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were ¥1,057 million
($8,958 thousand) and ¥2,497 million, respectively. Whole assets of the VIE
are not collateral for the VIE's obligations. Also, the creditors or beneficial
interest holders of the consolidated VIE have no recourse 1o the general credit
of the Company.

The Company is not a primary beneficiary of the unconsolidated VIEs and
does not hold any significant variable interests in the VIEs.

Intercompany items have been eliminated in consolidation,

Investments mainly in 20%~50%-owned companies (the “affiliated
companies”) are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue refated 1o preduct sales when (1) persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery has occuired or services have
been rendered, (3) the sales price is fixed or determinable, and (4) collectibility
is reasonably assured.

Sales of environmental and other plant and eguipment are recorded when
the installation of plant and equipment is cempleted and accepted hy the cus-
tomer for short-term contracts, and recorded under the percentage-of-comple-
tion method of accounting for long-term contracts. (See Note 10. REVENUE
RECOGNITION FOR LONG-TERM CONTRACTS), Estimated losses on sales con-
tracts are recorded in the period in which they are identified. The percentages
of net sales to consolidated revenues for the years ended March 31, 2007,
2006, and 2005 that pertain to long-term contracts were 1.8%, 4.0%, and
6.2%, respectively.

Housing real estate sales are recorded when the title is legally transferred to
the customer in accordance with the underlying contract and real estate laws
and regulations. The percentages of net sales to consolidated revenues for the
years ended March 31, 2007, 2008, and 2005 that pertain to housing real
estate sates were 0.8%, 0.5%, and 1.0%, respectively.

Finance receivables are composed of the total arrangement fee less
unamortized discounts. Based on imputed interest for the time value of mon-
ey and reserve for credit losses, income is recorded over the terms of the
receivablas using the interest method.

Foreign Currency Translation

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation,” assets
and liabilities of fereign subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at year-
end exchange rates, and income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, The resulting translation adjustments are included
in accumulated cther comprehengive income (loss) in the accompanying con-
solidated balance sheets. Exchange gains and losses resulting from foreign
currency transactions and translation of assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are inciuded in the consolidated statements of income,

Securitization of Receivables

The Company sells trade and finance receivables to investors through bank-
ruptcy-remote independent securitization trusts. At the time the receivables
are sold to the securitization trusts, the balances are removed from the con-
solidated balance shaet of the Company. The investment in the sold recelv-
ables pool is allocated between the portion sold and the portion retained
based on their relative fair values on the date of sale. The gain or loss for
each qualifying sale of receivables is determined based on book value
allocated to the portion soid. Those portions retained are subseguently
measured at fair value.

The Company continues to service the receivahles for a fee based on a
percentage of the receivables transferred. The investors and the securitiza-
tion trusts have no recourse to the Company’s assets for failure of debtors to
pay when due.

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful notes and receivables. The
allowance for doubtful receivables is based cn historical collection trends and
management’s judgement on the collectibility of these accounts. Historical
collection trends, as well as prevailing and anticipated economic conditicns,
are routinely monitored by management, and any adjustment required to the
allowance is reflected in current operations.
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Inventories

Manufacturing inventories are stated at the lower of cost, substantially deter-
mined using the average-cost method, or market, representing the estimated
selling price lass costs to sell. Completed real estate projects are stated at the
lower of acquisition cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell. The fair
values of those assets are estimates hased on the appraised values in the
market. Land to be developed and projects under development are carried at
50st unless an impairmant loss is required. An impairment loss on those
assets is recognized when their carrying amounts exceed the undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be realized from them and is measured based
on the present values of those expected future cash flows.

Investments

Under SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities,” the Company classifies all its debt securities and marketable
equily securities as available for sale and carries them at fair value with a
corresponding recognition of the net unrealized halding gain or loss (net of
tax) as an item of other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity, The
fair values of those securities are determined based on quoted market prices.

Gains and losses on sales of available-for-sale securities as well as
other nonmarketable equity securities which are carrisd at cost are comput-
ed on the average-cost method. When a decline in the value of the market-
able security is deemed to be other than temporary, the Company recognizes
an impairment less to the extent of the decline. In determining if and when such
a decling in value is other than temporary, the Company evaluates the extent
to which cost exceeds market valug, the duration of market declines, and
other key measures. Other non-marketable securities are stated at cost and
reviewed periodically for impairment.

(Merger of Bank of Tokyc and Mitsubishi Bank)

On April 1, 1996, The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd, (“BOT") and The Mitsubishi Bank,
Limited, mergad. Upen the merger, each common share of BOT ewned by
the Company which had begn carried at cost was converted into 0.8 share of
the combined entity, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. {currently part of
Mitsubishi UkJ Financial Graup, inc. {*MUFG™), For purposes of comparability
with financial statements under Japanese GAAP, the Company did not
account for the exchangs under EITF 41-5, which requires recognition of a
nonmonetary exchanga gain on the common shares of BOT.

It EITF 91-5 had been adopted, net income for the year ended March 31,
1997 would have increased by ¥3,081 million reflecting the unrecognized
gain on the initial nonmonetary exchange, and net losses for the years ended
March 31 from 1999 through 2003 would have increased totaling ¥3,461
million reflecting primarily subsequent fosses on sales and impairment of the
investment. There would have been no impact on operating results for the
years ended March 31, 2007, 20086, and 2005. Retained earnings would
have decreased by ¥380 million {$3,220 thousand) at March 31, 2007,
2008, and 2005, with a corresponding increase in accumulated other
comprehensive income.

{Merger of UFJ Holdings and Mitsubishi Tokyo Financial Group)

On Octeber 1, 2005, UFJ Holdings, Inc. {“UFJ") and Mitsubishi Tokyo
Financial Group, Inc. merged. Upon the merger, each commen share of UFJ
owned by the Company which had been carried at cost was cenverted into
(.62 share of the comhined entity, MUFG.

For the year ended March 31, 2006, the Company accounted for the gain
on nonmaonetary exchange of securities of ¥15,901 million, based on the fair
value of MUFG's commaon shares of ¥18,284 miflion less carrying amounts of
UFJ's common shares of ¥2,383 million.
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{(Merger of Hanshin Electric Railway and Hankyu Heldings)

On October 1, 2006, Hanshin Electric Railway Co., Ltd. ("Hanshin") and
Hankyu Holdings, Inc. merged. Upon the merger, each common share of
Hanshin owned by the Company which had been carried at cost was convert-
ed into 1.4 shares cf the combined entity, Hankyu Hanshin Holdings, Inc.
(“Hankyu Hanshin™,

For the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company accounted for gain on
nonmonetary exchange of securities of ¥997 million ($8,449 thousand),
based on the fair value of Hankyu Hanshin's common shares of ¥1,205 mil-
lion ($10,212 thousand) {ess carrying amounts of Hanshin's common shares
of ¥208 million {$1,763 thousand).

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia-
tion. Depreciaticn of plant and equipment is principally computed using the
declining-balance method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets,
The estimated usefu! lives are principally as follows:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

10~50 years
2~14 years

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets
and liabitities are computed based on the differences between the financial
statement and the income tax bases of assets and liabilities and tax loss and
other carryforwards using the enacted tax rate. A valuation allowance is
established, when necessary, o reduce deferred tax assets to the amount
that management believes will more likely than not be realized.

Retirement and Pension Plans

The Company accounted for retirement and pension plans in accordance with
SFAS No. 87, “Employers” Accounting for Pensions,” as amended by SFAS
No. 158, "Employers’ Accounting for Defined Bengfit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106,
and 132 (R)." The Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions
of SFAS No. 158 on March 31, 2007. The Company recognizes its overfunded
or underfunded status of the defined benefit plan as an asset or liahility in the
consolidated balance sheets with a cerresponding adjustment to pensicn liabili-
ty adjustment in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax.

The Company amortizes the prior service costs (benefits) due to amend-
ments of the benefit plans over approximately 15 years. The Company recog-
nizes actuarial gains and losses in excess of 20% of the larger of the projected
benefit obfigation or plan assets in the year following the year in which such
gains and losses wera incurred, and amortizes actuarial gains and losses
between 10% and 20% over the average participants’ remaining service pericd
{approximately 14 years).

Gonsideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer

The Company accounts for consideration given to a customer in accordance
with EITF 01-8, "Accourting for Consideration Giver by a Vendor to a Custemer
{Including a Reseller of the Vendar's Products}.” EITF 01-9 defines the
income statement classification of consideration given by a vendor to a
custamer or a reseller of the vendor's products. In accordance with EITF
01-8, cerfain sales incentives are deducted from revenue.

Research and Development and Advertising
Research and development and advertising costs are expensed as incurred.




Shipping and Handling Costs
Shipping and handling costs are includad in selling, general, and administra-
tive expenses.

Expense from the Payments for Health Hazard of Asbestos

The Company expenses payments to certain residents who lived near the
Company’s plant and current and formar employees when the Company
determines that a payment is warranted based on the medical condition of
the individual concerned and in accordance with the Company's poficies and
procedures.

The Company also accrues an estimated loss from asbestos-related
matiers by a charge 10 income if both of the following conditions are mat;
a. Itis probable that a liability had been incurred at the date of financial

Statements.

b. The amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.
(See Note 17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES )

Net Income per Common Share
Basic net income per common share has been computed by dividing net
income available to commen shareholders by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding for the period,

Diluted net income per common share reflects the potential dilution
and has been computed on the basis that all convertible debeniures were
converted at the beginning of the year or at the time of issuance (if tater).

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in accordance
with 5FAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” No. 138, "Accounting for Centain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133,"
and No. 149, “Amendment of Statement No. 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities.” These standards establish accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments and for hedging activities, and require
that an entity recognizes all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the
balance sheet and measures those instruments at fair value.

On the date the derivative contract is entered into, the Company desig-
nates the derivative as a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability
of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability
{“cash flow” hedge). The Company formally documents all relationships
between hedging instruments and hedgad items, as well as its isk managemen
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process
includes tinking all derivatives that are designaied as cash flow hedges to
specific assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet or to specific
firm commitments or forecasted transactions. The Company considers all
hedges to be highly effective in offsetting changas in cash flows of hedged
items, because the currency, index of interest rates, amount, and terms of
the derivatives carrespond to those of the hedged items in accordance with the
Company's policy.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective and that is
designated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge are recorded in other compre-
hensive income {loss), until eamnings are affected by the variability in cash
flows of the designated hedged item,

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for impairment of long-lived assets in accordance
with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.”

The Company evaluates long-lived assets to ba held and used for impair-
ment using an estimate of undiscounted cash flows whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets
may not be recoverable. If the estimate of undiscounted cash flows is less
than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is recorded based
an 1he fair value of the assets,

The Company evaluates long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale at the
lower of carrying amount ar fair value less cost to sell.

Discontinued Operations
The Company accounis for discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposat of Long-Lived Assets™
and presents the results of discontinued operations as a separate line item in
the consalidated statements of income under income (loss) from discontinuad
operations, net of taxes.

The figures of the consolicated statements of Incore for the prior years
related to the discontinued operations have been separately reported from
the ongoing operating results to conform with the current year presentation.

Cash Flow Information

The Company considers all highly liquic investments with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At March 31, 2007, 2006, and
2008, time deposits with original maturities of three monshs or less amounting
to ¥3,832 million (832,475 thousand), ¥4,195 million, and ¥3,333 million,
respectively, were included in cash and cash equivalants.

Cash paid for interest amounted to ¥11,066 million (393,780 thousand),
¥6,911 million, and ¥4,401 million, and for income taxes amounted to
¥36,733 million ($311,297 thousand}, ¥32,724 million, and ¥32,092 million
in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

The Company retired treasury stock of ¥8,484 million (571,808 thousand),
¥36,336 million, and ¥23,881 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
Convertible bonds of ¥71,801 miion were converted into common stock

in 2006,

The Company capitalized leased assets under capital leases of ¥4,231 mil-
lion {$35,856 thousand), ¥3,945 million, and ¥3,909 million in 2007, 2006,
and 2005, respectively.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of the Financial Statements
Management uses estimates in preparing the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with US GAAP. Significant estimates used

in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are primarily in the
areas of collectibility of private-sector notes and acceunts receivable, inventory
valuation, impairment of long-lived assets, valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets, accruals for employee retirement and pensicn plans, and revenue
recognition for long-term contracts. These estimates are assessed hy the
Company on a regular basis and management believes that material changes
will not occur in the near term, although actual results could ultimately

differ from these estimates.

New Accounting Standards

In June 2006, ihe FASB issued Interpretation Na. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of SFAS No. 109", This inter-
pretation introduces a ngw approach that significantly changes how companies
recognize and measure tax bensfits associated with tax positions and disclose
uncertainties related to income tax positions, This interpretation is effectiva in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is currently
calculating the impact of applying the interpretation on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Reclassification of Finance Income and Expenses from Retail
Finance Business in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Finance income and expenses from retail finance business were previously
classified mainly into “Interest income™ and *Interest expensg” in other income
in the consolidated statements of income. The Company reconsidered their
classification and currently classifies them into “Revenues” and “Cost of

revenues” pursuant te Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6,
“Flements of Financial Statements," since the significance of retail finance
busingss has been increasing and the business is beceming one of the major
or central operations of the Company. The reclassification has been made to
the presentation of the prior years' statements ¢f income to conform with the
classification used for the year ended March 31, 2007.

The impact of the rectassification of the affected ine items in the consolidated statements o income with respect to the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005
is as follows:

Consolidated Statements of Income

Millions ¢f Yen
2006 2005
Previgus As Previpus As
Classification  Reclassificaion  Aeclassified  Classificalion  Reclassilication  Reclassified
Revenues ¥1,050,425 ¥15311 ¥1,085736 ¥982,878 ¥11,605 ¥994,483
Cost of revenues 746,756 7.196 753,952 712,708 3,787 716,495
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 185,383 634 186,017 181,691 807 182,498
Operating income 113,577 7.481 121,058 87,065 7,011 94,076
Interest and dividend income 14,3556  (11,548) 2,807 9,488 (7 ,546) 1,942
Interest expense {7,084} 5,928 (1,156) (4,660) 2,998 (1,662)
Other—net (931) (1,861) (2,792) 4,298 {2.463) 1,835
Other income, net 26,944 (7,481) 19,463 69,301 (7,011 62,290
2. INVENTORIES
Inventories at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:
Thausands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Doltars
2007 2006 2007
Manufacturing:
Finished products ¥123,901 ¥103,686 $1,050,008
Spare parts 21,332 21,287 180,780
Work in process 31,793 25,693 269,432
Raw materials and supplies 23,100 21,205 195,763
Subtotal 200,126 171,871 1,695,983
Real estate:
Completed projects, land to be developed, and projects under development 5532 3,789 46,881
¥205,658 ¥175,660 $1,742,864
3. INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
Investments in and advances to affiliated companies at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:
Thausands of
Miltions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2007 2006 2007
Investments ¥13,734 ¥13,100 $116,390
Advances 20 36 169
¥13,754 ¥13,145 $116,559
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A summary of financial information of affiliated companies is as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen {1.5. Dollars
At March 31, 2007 and 2006 2007 2006 2007
Current assets ¥ 59,006 ¥ 65,492 $500,051
Noncurrent assets 57,354 54,112 486,051
Total assets 116,360 119,604 986,102
Current liabilities 62,182 66,462 526,966
Noncurrent liabilities 21,542 21,807 182,559
Met assets ¥ 32,636 ¥ 31,335 $276,577
Thousands ot
Milions of Yen LLS. Dollars
Years Enged March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007
Revenues ¥219,750 ¥219,920 ¥222,753 $1,862,288
Cost of revenues 161,392 162,124 165,050 1,367,729
Net income 2,956 3,126 4,886 25,051

Trade notes and accounts receivable from affiliated companies at March 31,
2007 and 2006 were ¥18,411 million ($156,025 thousand) and ¥19,355 mil-

lion, respectively.

Revenues from affiliated companies aggregated ¥51,882 million ($439,678
thousand), ¥54,484 million, and ¥64,465 million for the years ended March

31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

4. OTHER INVESTMENTS

2006, and 2005, respectively.

March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Cash dividends received from affiliated companies were ¥28 million ($237
thousand), ¥48 million, and ¥28 million for the years ended March 31, 2007,

Retained earnings include net undistributed eamings of affiliated companies
in the amount of ¥8,729 million ($73,975 thousand} and ¥7,962 mitlion at

The cost, fair value, and gross unrealized holding gains and losses for securities by major security type at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Miliions of Yen
2007 2006
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding Holding Holding
Cost Fair Value Gaing Losses Cost Fair Valug Gains Losses
Other investments:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities of financial institutions ¥36,988 ¥125,948 ¥ 83,960 ¥— ¥37,208 ¥153,697 ¥116,489 ¥—
Cther equity securities 21,118 77,778 56,677 18 19,970 71,705 51,736 1
¥58,107 ¥203,726 ¥145,637 ¥18 ¥57,178 ¥225,402 ¥168,225 ¥1
Thousands of U.S, Doliars
2007
Gross Gross
Unrezlized Unrealized
Holding Holding
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses
Other investments:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities of financial institutions $313,458 $1,067,356 $ 753898 §$ —
Other equity securities 178,975 659,136 480,314 153
$492,433 $1,726,492 $1,234.212 $153
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Gross unrealized holding losses and fair values on available-for-sale securities at March 31, 2007 and 2006 aggregated by the length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position were as follows:

Millions of Yen
2007 2006
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Less than 12 monihs 12 months or longer
Grass Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unreglized Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding Holding Holding
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Lasses
Other investments:
Avaitable-for-sale other equity securities ¥154 ¥18 ¥— ¥— ¥3 ¥i ¥— ¥—

Thousands of U.S. Collars

2007

Less than 12 months

12 months or longer

Gross

Unrealized
Holding
Fair Value Losses

Gross
Unrealized
Helding
Fair Value Losses

Other investments:
Available-for-sale other equity securities

$1,305 $153

—

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities and gross realized gains and losses that have been included in earnings as a result of those sales for the

years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2007 2008 2005 2007
Proceeds from sales ¥2,301 ¥8,490 ¥2.981 $20,263
Gross realized gaing 1,463 4,844 1,821 12,398
Gross realized tosses (150) (241) {217 (1,271)

Investments in non-traded and unaffiliated companies, for which there is no
readily determinable fair value, were stated at cost of ¥11,404 million ($96,644
thousand) and ¥11,227 million at March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Investments in non-marketable equity securities for which there is no
readily determinable fair value were accounted for using the cost method, and
each investment in non-marketable equity securities is reviewed annually for

5. FINANCE RECEIVABLES

impairment or upon the occurrence of an event cn change in circumstances that
may have a significant adverse effect on the carrying value of the invastment.

For the years ended March 31, 2007, 2008, and 2005, valuation losses on
other investments were recognized to reflect the decline in fair value consid-
ered to be other-than-temporary totaling ¥524 million ($4,441 thousand),
¥403 million, and ¥423 million, respectively.

Finance receivables arise from sales of farm equipment and construction
machinery to customers uncer retail finance agreements. The term of the

Annual maturities of finance receivables at March 31, 2007 were as follows:

receivables varies from one to eight years, with interest at rates ranging from
0.0% to 14.8% per annum.

Thousands of
Years Ending March 31, Millions of Yen U.S. Doltars
2008 ¥ 97,798 $ 828,797
2008 74,335 629,958
2010 44,650 378,390
20M 29,909 253,466
2012 14,354 121,644
2013 and thereafter 6,783 57,483
Total ¥267 829 $2,269,738
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Revenues and cost of revenues for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 included finance income and expenses as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2007 2006 2005 2007
Finance income ¥22 217 ¥15,311 ¥11,605 $188,280
Finance expenses 12,282 7,196 3,787 104,085

The Company sells finance raceivables. (See Note 18, SECURITIZATION OF RECEIVABLES.) Pretax gains or losses on such sales are included in finance

income or finance expenses in the table above.

6. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The changes in the allowance for doubtful notes and accounts receivable for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars

2007 2006 2005 2007

Balance at beginning of year ¥2,155 ¥2,257 ¥3,004 $18,262
Provision for doubtful accounts 253 55 79 2,161
Write-cffs (468) (179 (175) {(3,966)
Other 69 22 (701) 585
Balance at end of year ¥2,011 ¥2,155 ¥2,257 $17,042

The balances of the allowance for doubtiul non-current receivable at
March 31, 2007 and 2006 wera ¥2,811 million ($23,822 thousand) and

7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

¥3,913 million, respectively. Such balances are reported as other assets in
the consofidated baiance sheets.

Shont-term barrowings at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of notes
nayabig to banks of ¥128,365 million ($1,087,839 thousand) and ¥132,209
millior, respectively.

Stated annual interest rates of short-term borrowings ranged primarily from
0.81% to 5.77% and from 0.31% to 4.71% at March 31, 2007 and 2008,

Long-term debt at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

respectively. The weighted average interest rates on such short-term borrow-
ings at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were 5.3% and 4.0%, respectively.

Available lines of credit with certain banks totaled ¥20,000 million
($169,492 thousand) at March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
Gompany had no outstanding borrowings as cf March 31, 2007 and 2006
related to lines of credit.

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U5, Dollars
Due in Years Ending March 31 2007 2006 2007
Unsecured bonds:
1.20% yen notes 2011 ¥ 10,000 ¥ 10,000 $ 84,746
1.54% yen notes 2013 10,000 10,000 84,746
Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies,
maturing on various dates through 2015:
Collateralized 70,491 47,083 597,381
Unsecured 124,466 128,938 1,054,797
Capital lease obligations 6,577 6,023 55,737
Total 221,534 202,044 1,877,407
Less current portion (71,429) (50,020 (605,331)
¥150,105 ¥152,024 $1,272,076

The interest rates on unsecured bonds were fixed. The interest rates
of the long-term loans from banks and insurance companies were

principally fixed and the weighted average rates at March 31, 2007 and
2006 were 3.6% and 2.3%, respectively,
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Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of

Years Ending March 31, Mitlions of Yen U.8. Dollars
2008 ¥ 71429 $ 605,331
2009 59,613 505,195
2010 58,018 491,678
2011 17,619 149,313
2012 1,681 14,246
2013 and thereafter 13,174 111,644
Total ¥221,534 $1.877,407

At March 31, 2007 and 2006, assets pledged as collateral for deht were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen 1.5, Dollars

2007 2006 2007
Trade notes ¥ 456 ¥ 53 $ 3864
Trade accounts 2,524 1485 21,390
Finance receivables 117,835 87,994 998,602
Property, plant, and equipment 9,646 9,817 81,746
Total ¥130,461 ¥99,807 $1,105,602
The above asssts were pledged against the following liabilities:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen 1.8, Dollars

2007 2006 2007

Short-term borrowings ¥ 35,927 ¥36,473 $304,466
Current portion of long-term deht 28,709 16,394 243,296
Long-term debt 41,782 30,689 354,085
Total ¥106,418 ¥83,006 $901,847

Beth short-term and long-term bank loans are made under general agree-
ments which provide that security and guarantees for present and future
indebtedness will be given upon reguest of the bank, and that the bank shall
have the right to offset cash deposits against obligations that have become

8. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS

due or, in the gvent of default, against ali obligations due to the bank. Long-
term agreements with lenders other than banks also generally provide that
the Company must give additicnal security upon request of the lender.

The parent company and its domestic subsidiaries have a number of unfunded
severance indemnity plans and defined benefit pension plans covering substan-
tially all Japanese employees. Most employees of overseas subsidiaries are
covered by defined benefit pension plans or defined contribution pensicn plans.
In the parent company, employess who terminate their employment have
the option to receive benefits in the form of lump-sum payments or annuity
payments from a defined benefit pension plan. The benefits are calculated as
an aggregation of the following points under the point-based benefits systemn
{with a point having specific monetary value):
* Points granted in proportion to each employee's job classification at refire-
ment and length of service period
« Accumulated points granted in proportion to each employee’s job classifica-
tion at the end of each fiscal year
» Accumulated points granted in proportion to each employee’s performance
evaluation at the end of sach fiscal year
The plan consists of a lifetime pension plan and a limited annuity plan, and
annua contributions are made by the parent company for an amount deter-
mined on the basis of an accepted actuarial method for the plan. The plan is
administered by a board of trustees composed of management and employee
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representatives. Plan assets, which are managed by trust banks and invest-
mant advisors, are invested primarily in corporate and government bonds
and stocks,

The parent comgany also had a contributory defined benefit pension plan
covering all of its employees {the “Contributory Plan”). The Contributory Plan
consisted of a substitutional portion based on the pay-relfated part of the old-
age pension benefits prescribed by the Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance
Law and a corporate partion based on a defined benefit pension arrangament
established at the discretion of management. Under the Japanese law that
regulates retirement benefit plans, the Company could transfer the banefit
obligation for the substitutional portion and related plan assets to the govern-
ment, and the Company transferred the obligation and the plan assets to the
govemment in January 2005. As a result of the transfer of the substitutiona!
portion, the parent company has succeeded the corporate portion of the
Contributory Plan.

For the year ended March 31, 2005, the Company recognized, in accor-
dance with EITF No. 3:3-2, “Accounting for the Transter to the Japanese
Government of the Substitutional Portion of Employee Pension Fund Liabilities,”
the difference of ¥58,571 million between the substitutional portion of




accumulated benefit obligations settled and the related plan assets transferred
to the Japanese govarnment as a government subsidy in Gther income (ex-
penses) in the consolidated statement of income. The Company aiso recog-
nized derecognition of previously accrued salary progression of ¥11,111
million and a settlement loss for the proportionate amount of the net unrecog-
nized loss attributable to the substitutional portion of ¥13,368 million, Tha net
amount of ¥2,255 million of derecognition of previously accrued salary pro-
gression and the setiement loss was allocated to cost of revenuas of ¥1,511
miflion and selling, general, and administrative expenses of ¥744 millicn.

The Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS
No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 108,
and 132 (R}" on March 31, 2007. The Company recognizes its overfunded or
underfunded status of the defined bensfit postretirement plan as an asset or

liability in the consolidated balance sheets with a corresponding adjustment to
pension liahility adjustment in accumutated other comprehensive income, net
of tax. The statement replaced SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions” which required to report at least minimum pension fiability measured
as excess of the accurmulated benefit abligation over the fair value of the plan
assets. The amaunt of pension liability adjustment is comprised of prior service
cost (henefit) and actuarial loss {gain), which will be subsequently recognized
as net periodic benefit cost in the consolidated statements of income pursuant
to the Company’s accounting policy for amortizing such amounts.

The incremental effects of adopting the statemant on the consclidated
balance sheets at March 31, 2007 are presented in the follpwing table. The
adoption of the statement had no effect on the consolidated statement of
income for the year ended March 31, 2007, or for any prior period presented,
and it will not affect the Company's operating results in future periods.

Miltions of Yen
Before Alter

Application of Application of

SFAS No. 158 Atjustments SFAS No. 158
Investments in and advances to affiliate companies ¥13,775 ¥ 21} ¥13,7564
Cther assets 40,588 717 48,871
Accrued retirement and pansion costs 43159 (15,853) 27,306
Cther long-term liabilities 46,363 6,369 52,732
fMinority interests 35,982 a7 36,069
Accumulated other comprehensive income 77,588 8,659 86,247

Thousands of L1.S. Dollars
Before After

Application of Appifcation of

SFAS No. 158 Adjustments SFAS No. 158
Investments in and advances to affiliate companies $118,737 $ (178 $118,559
Other agsets 420,237 (5,076) 414 161
Accrued retirement and pension costs 365,754 (134,347) 231,407
Other long-term liabilities 392 907 53,974 446 881
Minority interests 304,932 738 305,670
Accumulated cther comprahensive incoms 657,526 73,381 730907

Net periodic benefit cost for the unfunded sevarance indemnity plan, the defined benefit pension plan, and the Contributary Plan of the parent company and for
the unfunded severance indemnity plans and the defined benefit pensicn plans of certain subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 con-

sisted of the following compongnts.

Thousands of
Millions of Yen 1.S. Dallars

2007 2006 2005 2007
Sexvice cost ¥5,974 ¥6,841 ¥ 8343 $50,627
Interest cost 3,799 3,858 7,457 32,195
Expected return on plan assets (2,748) (2,277) (3.129) (23,288)
Amortization of prior service benefit 777 (780) (522) (6,585}
Recognized actuarial loss —_ — 2047 —_
Transfer to an affiliated company —_ (514) — —_
Derecognition of previously accrued salary progression -_ — 11,111 -—_
Settlement (05s — — 13,366 —
Net periodic benefit cost ¥6,248 ¥7.128 ¥16,451 $52,949
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Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of the benefit ebligations and the fair value of the plan assats, together with plans' funded status were as follows:

Thousands of
Milliens of Yen U.5. Dotlars
2007 2006 2007
Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year ¥176,109 ¥176,250 $1,492,449
Service cost 5,974 6,841 50,627
Interest cost 3,799 3,858 32,195
Amendments {(439) (25) (3,720)
Transfer to an affiliated company — (5,961) —_
Actuarial gain 1,024 5,904 8,678
Benefits paid {lump-sum payments) (8,868) (8,181} (75,153)
Benefits paid (annuity payments) (3,446) (3,203) (29,203)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 89 626 754
Benefit obligations at end of year ¥174,242 ¥176,109 $1,476,627
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ¥142,755 ¥108,060 $1,200,788
Actual return on plan assets (366} 31,830 (3,102)
Employer centributions 13,338 12,759 113,034
Transfer to an affiliated company — 12,815} —
Benefits paid {lump-sum payments} (5,293) (4,432 (44,856)
Benefits paid (annuity payments) (3,446) (3,203) (29,203)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 78 556 661
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ¥147,066 ¥142,755 $1,246,322
Plans’ funded status at end of year:
Funded status ¥(27,176) ¥(33,354) $ (230,305)
Unrecognized actuarial gain N/A {12,193) N/A
Unrecognized prior service benefit N/A {7,198) N/A
Net amount recegnized N/A ¥ (52,745) N/A

N/A—Not applicable. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 158, the funded status was recognized as an asset o liabllity and any unvecognized actuarial gain, prior service benefit was recognized
in accumulated comprehensive income at March 31, 2007,

The Company’s measurement date of benefit obligations and plan assets is March 31.
Accumulated benefit obligations at March 31, 2007 and 2006 wers as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.8. Dollars
2007 2006 2007
Accumulated benefit obligations:
Accumulated cenefit obligations at end of year ¥168,508 ¥168,779 $1,430,576

Projected benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets with projected benefit obligations in axcess of plan assets, and accumulated benefit obligations and fair
value of plan assets with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were as follows;

Thousands of

Willions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2007 2006 2007

Retirement and pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Projected benefit chligations ¥171,494 ¥173,537 $1,453,339

Fair value of plan assets 144,016 140,170 1,220,475
Retirement and pension plans with accumutated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Accumulated benefit obligations 166,060 166,207 1,407,288

Fair vaiue of plan assets 144,016 140,170 1,220,475
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2007 consist of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dallars
Accrued retirement and pension costs ¥(27,306) $(231,407;
Prepaid expenses for benefit plans, included in other assels 130 1,102
Funded status ¥(27,176) $(230,305)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2006 consist of the following:
Millions of Yen
Accrued retirement and pension costs ¥(53,633)
Prepaid expenses for benefit plans, included in other assets 888
Net amount recegnized ¥(52,745)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, before-tax, at March 31, 2007 consist of the following:
Thousands of
Milligns of Yen U.5. Dellars
Actuarial gain ¥ (7,873 $ (66,720
Prior service benefit (6,860} (58,136}
Total recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income ¥(14,733) $(124,856)

The estimated prior service benefit that will be amortized from accumultat-
ed other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost for the year
ending March 31, 2008 amounts to ¥808 millicn {$6,847 thousand).

The weighted-average discount rate used in calculating benefit obligations
at March 31, 2007 and 2006 was 2 5%.

Weighted-average assumptions used in calculating net periodic benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2008, and 2005 were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Expectad return on plan assets 3.0 3.0 35
Rate of compensaticn increase —_ 6.5 6.5

To determine the expected rate of return on pan assets, the Company
considers actual returns in the past 5 to 10 years, the current and expected
components of plan assets, and anticipated market trends. Plan assets are
managed by asset management companies and trust banks, and are invest-
ed primarily in fixed income and equity securities of Japanese and foreign
issuers. The Company assumed that the long-term rate of retun on plan
assets was 3.0% for the years ended March 34, 2007 and 2006, and 3.5%
for the year ended March 31, 2005. An actual return on plan assets in the
past 10 years was 3.4%, and an asset allocation assumption was 55% on
fixed income securities with an expected rate of return of 1.0%, and 45% on

equity securities with an expecied rate of return of 5.5% for the year ended
March 31, 2006 and thereafter.

The rate of compensation increase was not used in the calculation of benafit
obligations at March 31, 2007 and 2006, and net pariodic benefit cost for the year
ended March 31, 2007 as a result of completion of introduction of the peint-based
henefits system. Under the system, the benefit obligations and the net periodic
benefit cost are determined using cumulative points and not salaries. The
benefit obligations at March 31, 2007 and 20086, and the net periodic benefit
cost for the year ended March 31, 2007 were calculated on the basis of an
annual increase in poinis of 7.1%.
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Pension plan weighted-averaga asset allocations by asset category were as follows:

2007 2006
Fquity securities 44.6% 48.7%
Debt securities 54.9 499
Other 0.5 1.4
100.0% 100.0%

The Company’s investment policy is to invest in equity securities and debt
securities of companies in Japan and overseas primarily in Europe and the
United States in order to diversify risk. The Company beligves that investment

in equity securities of 45% and debi securities of 55% is a proper allocation
ratio and is congistent with the Campany's investment objectives.

Employer contributions to pension plans for the year ending March 31,
2008 are expected to be ¥13,562 million ($114,932 thousand).

The {ollowing benefit payments, which reflact expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be pdid:

Thousands of
Years Ending March 31, Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 ¥12,174 $103,169
2009 12,521 106,110
2010 12,937 109,636
2011 12,817 108,619
2012 12,496 105,898
2013-2017 56,716 480,644

9. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

On and after May 1, 2006, Japanese companies are subject to a new corporate
law of Japan (the "Corporate Law"), which reformed and replaced the Japanese
Commercial Code with various revisions that are, for the most part, applicable to
events or transactions which occur on or after May 1, 2006 and for the fiscal
years ending on or afier May 1, 2006. The significant changes in the Corporate
Law that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

(a) Dividends

The Corporate Law permits companies 1o pay dividends at any time during the
fiscal year in addition 1o the year-end dividend upan reselution at the share-
holders meeting. For companies that meet certain criteria such as (1) having
the Board of Directers, {2) having independent auditors, (3) having the Board of
Corporate Auditors, and (4) the term of service of the directors is prescribed as
one year rather than two yaars of normal term by its articles of incorporation,
the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends in kind) if
the Company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. The Company
meets ail the above criteria.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolu-
tion by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the companies
so stiputate. The Corporate Law also provides certain limitations on the
amounts available for dividends or the purchase of tfreasury stock. The limita-
tion is defined as the amount available for distribution to the sharehaldess,
but the amount of rat assets after dividends must be maintained at ng less
than ¥3 million.
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(b) Increases/decreases and transfer

of common stock, reserve, and surpius
The Corporate Law requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must
be appropriated as a legal reserve or as additional paid-in capitai depending
on the equity accourt charged upon the payment of such dividends until the
total of aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paic-in capital
equéis 25% of the common stock. Under the Corporate Law, the total
ameunt of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed with-
out limitation of such threshold. The Corporate Law also provides that com-
man stock, legal reserva, capital surplus, and retained earnings can be
transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upon resolution of
the shareholders.

{c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights

The Cerporate Law also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock

and digpose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.

The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available

for distribution to the shareholders which is determined by specific formula.
The Corporate Law also provides that companies can purchase both

treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock.



10. REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR LONG-TERM CONTRACTS

Long-term contracts accepted by the Company consist mainty of construction
works with the Japanese national government and local governments, such
as construction of environmental control plants, and facilities for water sup-
ply. These contracts are completed within two o three years.

The coniracts, which are fully executed before the commencement of
construction projects, include the terms of the contract price, expected com-
pletion date and critical milestone dates, and acceptance inspections (8.q.,
performance tests and external appearance inspections). The contracts are
legally enforceable and the parties are expected to satisfy their obligations
under the contracts. The Company is able to develop reasonably dependable
estimates of the otal contract cost based on the construction order, that
ingludes details an every single component unit, labor hour costs, and all
overhead.

Further, the Company believes that it is able to develop reasenably
dependable estimates of the extent of progress towards cempletion of indi-
vicual contracts and, therefore, the long-term contracts are accounted for

using the percentage of completion method.

Concerning the method of measuring the extent of progress toward com-
pletion, the Company uses the cost-to-cost method in measuring the extent
of progress toward completion. In most cases, the Company's contracts with
customers include the delivery and installation of companent units.

In case that an opticn or an addition which has separate contents from
an existing contract has occurred, it is treated as a separate contract and,
it otherwise, is combined with the original contract.

Additional contract revenue arising from any claims for customer-caused
reasons is recognized when the contract modification is completed.

Any revisions in revenue, ¢ost, and profit estimates or in measurements of
the extent of progress toward completion are accountad for in the consolidat-
ed statement of income for the fiscal year in which the contract modification
has been completed. A disclosure is made of the effect of such revisions in
the financial statements, if significant.

Notes receivable and accounts receivahle related to the long-term contracts accounted for under the percentage of completion method as of March 31, 2007

and 2006 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen 1.5, Dollars
2007 2006 2007
Less than Less than Less than
Years ented March 31 1 year 1-2years  2-3years 1 year 1-2years  2-3years | year 1-2years  2-3years
Notes receivable ¥ — ¥ — ¥— Y 492 ¥ — ¥ — 58 — 8 —  $
Accounis receivable 9,244 679 — 26,260 537 135 78,339 5,754 —
¥9,244 ¥679 ¥— ¥26,752 ¥537 ¥135 $78,339 §5,754 $—

Alarge portion of such receivables had been billed to customers, and the total
aggregated amounts which had not been billed or were not billable were not
material as of March 31, 2007 and 2006. The total aggregated amounts subject
to uncertainty were not material.

11. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES), NET

With respect to the inventories refated to the long-term contracts, the
aggregated amounts of manufacturing or production costs which exceeds
the aggregated estimate costs of all in-process, the total aggregated amounts
subject 1o uncertainty, and advances receipt offset with inventories were
not material as of March 31, 2007 and 2006.

Other—net as shown in other income {expenses) for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Milliens of Yen U.5. Dallars

2007 2006 2005 2007
Loss from write-down of securities ¥ (524) ¥ {403) ¥ (423 $ 440)
Foreign exchange (Joss} gain—net {442) (1,952) 3,597 (3,746)
Other—net (2,180) {437) (1,339 (18,559)
¥(3,156) ¥(2,792) ¥1,836 $(26,746)

Kubota Corporation 43




12. INCOME TAXES

Income from continuing operations before income taxes, minorily interests in earnings of subsidiaries, and equity in net income of affiliated companies and
income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were comprised of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2007 2006 2005 2007
Income from continuing operations before income taxes, minority interests in
earnings of subsidiaries, and equity in net income of affiliated companies:
Domestic ¥ 80,208 ¥102,857 ¥123,792 $ 679,729
Foreign 51,357 37,664 32,574 435,229
¥131,565 ¥140,521 ¥156,366 $1,114,958
Income taxes:
Current—
Domastic ¥ 28184 ¥ 18,085 ¥ 21,780 $238,848
Foreign 19,824 16,368 12,711 168,000
48,008 34,433 34,491 406,848
Deferred—
Domestic 3,415 24,522 14,503 28,940
Foreign (2,462) (2,888) {878) (20,864)
953 21,634 13625 8,076
Total ¥ 48,961 ¥ 56,067 ¥ 48116 $414,924

The approximate effects of temporary differences and tax loss and credit carryforwards that gave rise to deferred tax balances at March 31, 2007 and 2006

were as follows:

Thousands of
Milions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2007 2006 2007
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful receivables ¥ 1,540 ¥ 1,950 $ 13,051
Intercompany profits 12,340 11,462 104,576
Adjustment of investment securities 11,322 11,547 85,949
Write-downs of inventories and fixed assets 2,834 1,313 24,17
Accrued bonus 6,173 6,349 52,314
Retirement and pension costs 15,123 25,759 128,161
Tax loss and credit carryforwards 4,390 2251 37,203
Other temporary differences 23,615 17,045 200,127
Subtotal 77,337 77676 655,398
Less valuation allowance (1,212} (3,439 (10,271)
¥76,125 ¥74,237 $645,127
Deferred tax liabilities:

Adjustment of investment securities ¥66,015 ¥74.913 $559,449
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates 9,511 6,845 80,602
Other temporary differences 9,354 4,734 79,271
¥84,880 ¥86,492 $719,322

Net deferred tax balances at March 31, 2007 and 2006 were reflectad in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the following line items:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2007 2006 2007
Other current assets ¥37,467 ¥ 28,700 $317,517
Other assets 4,046 4,088 34,288
QOther current liabilities (60) — (508)
Other long-term liabilities {50,208) {45,043} (425,492)
Net deferred tax liabilities ¥ (8,755) ¥(12,256) $ (74,195)
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A valuation allowance is recorded against the deferred tax assets for ilems
which may not be realized.

Based upon the level of histerical taxable income and projections for future
taxable income over the pariods which the net deductible temporary differ-
ences are expected to reverse ancd/or the tax losses and credits are carried
forward, management believes it is more likely than not that the Company

will realize the bengfits of these deferred tax assets, net of the existing
valuation allowances at March 31, 2007.

At March 33, 2007, the tax loss carrylorwards in the aggragate amounted
to approximately ¥11,000 million ($93,220 thousand), which are available to
offset future taxable income, and will expire in the period from 2008 through
2012,

The changes in the valuation allowance for the years ended March 31, 2007, 20086, and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Miions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2007 2006 2005 2007
Balance at beginning of year ¥3,439 ¥3,824 ¥22.913 $29,144
Addition 548 508 2.466 4,644
Deduction (2,775) {893) {21,555} (23,517)
Balance at end of year ¥1,212 ¥3,439 ¥ 3,824 $10,2M1

The effective income tax rates of the Company for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2007 differed frem the normal Japanese statutory

tax rates as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Normal Japanese statutory tax rates applied 1o income from continuing operations before income taxes,
minority interests in eamings of subsidiaries, and equity in net income of affiliated companies 40.6% 40.6% 40.6%
Increase (decrease) in axes resulting from:
Decrease in valuation allowance (1.4} 0.3) (8.5)
Permanently nondeductible expenses 0.7 0.4 0.4
Nontaxable dividend income {0.2) 0.2} (0.1)
Extra tax deduction on expenses for research and development (1.9} (1.2) (1.3)
Other—net (0.6} 0.6 (0.3)
Effective income tax rates applied to income from continuing operations before income taxes,
minority interests in earnings of subsidiaries, and equity in net income of affiliated companies 37.2% 39.9% 30.8%

Provisions have been recorded for unremitted earnings of all foreign sub-
sidiaries and affifiates where earnings are not deemed to be permanently
reinvested. Substantially all of the undistributed earnings of domestic

13. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

subsidiaries and affiliates would not, undes present Japanese tax law, be
subject 1o tax through tax-free distributions.

A recongiliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share computation for the years ended March 31,

2007, 2006, and 2005 was as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen .S, Dollars
2007 2006 2005 2007
Basic net income (l0ss):
Income from continuing operations ¥77,743 ¥61,149 ¥107.132 $658,839
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes {1,286) (115) 10,769 (10,898)
Net incoma ¥76,457 ¥81,034 ¥117.901 $647,941
Effect of dilutive convertible bonds ¥ — ¥ 55 ¥ 188 $ —
Diluted net income (loss):
Income fram continuing operations ¥77,743 ¥81,204 ¥107,320 $658,839
Income {loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes {1,286) {119) 10,769 (10,898)
Net income ¥76,457 ¥81,089 ¥118,089 $647,941
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Number of Shares {Thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Weighted average common shaves outstanding 1,295,750 1,304,097 1,323,068
Effect of dilutive converiible bonds — 10,831 36910
Diluted common shares outstanding 1,295,750 1,314,928 1,359,978

14. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)

The components of other comprehensive income, including rectassification adjustments and tax effects for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

are as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2007 2007
Before-Tax Tax Benefit Net-of-Tax Before-Tax Tax Benefit Net-of-Tax
Amount [Expense) Amount Amount {Expense) Ameunt
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Foreign currency translation adjustments arising during period ¥ 5,095 ¥ (425) ¥ 4,670 $ 43,178 $(3602) § 39576
Reclassificaticn adjustment for logses realized in net income — —_ — —_ — —_
5,095 (425) 4,670 43,178 (3,602) 39,576
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized gains on securities arising during period (22,114) B,976 (13,138) (187,407) 76,068 (111,339)
Reclassification adjustment far gains realized in net income (789) 320 (469) (6,686) 2,712 (3,974)
(22,903} 9,296 (13,607) (194,093) 78,780 (115,313}
Unrealized losses on derivatives:
Unrealized tosses on derivatives arising during period (4,823) 1,924 (2,899) (40,873) 16,305 (24,568)
Reclassification adjustments for losses realized in net income 4,469 (1,814} 2,655 37,873 (15,373) 22,500
{(354) 110 (244) {3,000) 932 (2,068)
Other comprehensive loss ¥(18,162) ¥8,981 ¥ (9,181) £(153,915) £76,110  § (77,805}
Millions of Yen
2006
Before-Tax Tax Benefit Net-of-Tax
Amount ({Expense) Amgunt
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Foreign currency translalion adjustments arising during period ¥14,131 Y (582) ¥13,549
Reclassification adjustment for tosses realized in net income 21 — 21
14,152 (582) 13,570
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized gains on securities arising during period 80.095 (32.524) 47 571
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income (4,300) 1,746 (2.554)
75,795 {30,778) 4507
Unrealized losses on derivatives:
Unrealized 1osses on derivatives arising during period {5,593} 2,289 {3.304)
Reclassification adjustments for losses reatized in net income 6,698 (2,719 3.979
1,105 {430) 675
Other comprehensive income ¥91,052  ¥(31.790)  ¥59,262
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Millions of Yen

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Foreign currency translation adjustments arising during pariod
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income

Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized gains on securilies arising during period
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income

Minimum pension liability adjustment

Unrealized losses on derivatives:
Unrealized lnsses on derivatives arising during period
Reclassification adjustmenis for gains realized in net income

Other comprehensive income

2005
Before-Tax Tax Benefit Net-of-Tax
Amount (Expense) Amount

¥(1,628) ¥ 103 ¥(1,525)
57 — 57
{1,571} 103 (1,468)
2,046 (827) 1,219
(1,181) 479 (702
865 (348) 57
5,991 (2,499) 3,492
(1,429) 591 (838)
(456} 185 (271}
(1,885) 776 (1,109)
¥ 3,400 ¥{1,968) ¥ 1,432

The balances of each classification within accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows:

Millions of Yen
Unrealized Accumulated
Gumulative Unrealized Gains Pensicn Other
Translation Gains (Losses) on Liaility Comprenensive
Adjustments on Securities Derivatives Adjustments income
Balance, Agril 1, 2006 ¥ 657 ¥86,033 ¥ 79 ¥ — ¥86,769
Current—nperiod change 4670 (13,607) (244) — {9,181)
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of taxes — — — B,653 8,659
Balance, March 31, 2007 ¥5.327 ¥72,426 ¥(165) ¥8,659 ¥86,247
Thousands of U.S. Dallars
Unrealized Accurnulated
Sumulative Unreatized Gains Penston Other
Transiation Gains [Losses} on Liability Comprehensive
Adjustments on Securities Derivatives Adjustmants Income
Balance, Aprii 1, 2006 $ 5,568 $729,093 § 670 5 — $735,331
Current—period change 39,576 (115,313 {2,068) — {77,805}
Adjustment 1o initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of taxes — — — 73,381 73,381
Balance, March 31, 2007 545,144 $613,780 ${1,398) $73,381 $730,907

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

in the normal course of busingss, the Gompany invests in various financial
assets and incurs various financial liabilities. The Company also enters into

agreements involving derivative instruments 10 manage its exposure o

fluctuations in foreign exchange and interest rates.

Market Risk Management

international financial institutions and the Cempany does not anticipate
any such losses. The net cash requirements arising from the previously
mentioned risk management activities are not expected to be material.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risks
The Company's foreign currency exposure relates primarily to its foreign

Market Risk Exposures

The Company is subject to market rate risks due to fluctuation of foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates, and equity prices. Among these risks,
the Company manages foreign currency exchange and interest rate risks by
using derivative financial ingiruments in accordance with established policies
and procedures, The Company does not use derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The credit risks associated with these instruments are
not considered to be significant since the counterparties are reliable major

currency denominated asseis in its international operations. The Company
entered into foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swaps desig-
nated to mitigate its exposure to foreign currency exchange risks.

The: following table provides information regarding the Company’s
derivative financial instruments related to foreign currency exchange trans-
actions as of March 31, 2007, which was translatad into Japanese yen at
the year-end currency exchange rate.
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Fareign Exchange Forward Contracts and Gurrency Swaps

Millions of Thousands ot
Yen U.S. Doltars

Maturities, Years Enting March 31 2008 2008
Sell U.S. Doflar, buy Yen Receive ¥30,191 $255,856
Pay 29,972 254,000
Sell Euro, buy Yen Receive 9,988 84,644
Pay 10,109 85,669
Sell Canada Dollar, buy Yen Receive 409 3,466
Pay 408 3,458
Selt U.S. Dollar, buy Canada Dollar Receive 21 1,788
Pay 214 1814
Sell Sterling Pound, buy Yen Receive 232 1,966
Pay 232 1,966
Sell Baht, buy Yen Receive 12,051 102,127
Pay 13,977 118,449
Sell Baht, buy U.S. Dollar Receive 2 17
Pay 3 25
Selt Wan, buy Yen Recaive 178 1,508
Pay 176 1,492
Seil Australia Oollar, buy Yen Receive 561 4,754
Pay 570 4,831

Interest Rate Risks

The Company is exposed to interest rate risks mainly inharent in its debt
obligations with both fixed and variable rates. Debt obligations that are
sensitive 1o interest rate changes are disclosed in Note 7. In order to hedge
these risks, the Company uses interest rate swap contracts to change the
characteristics of its fixed and variable rate exposures.

Interest Rate Swap Contracts

The following table provides information, by maturity date, about the
Company's interest rata swap contracts. The table regresents notional princi-
pal amounts and weighted average interest rales by expected maturity dates.
Notional principal amounts are used to calculate the contractual payments to
be exchanged under the contracts as of March 31, 2007, which are translat-
ed into Japanese yen at the year-end currency exchange raie.

Weighted Average Rate Noticnal Amount

Thousands of

Maturities, Years Ending March 31, Receive Pay Millions of Yen U8 Dollars
2008 3.56% 3.66%  ¥37,417 $317,093
2009 385 3.92 28,710 243,305
2010 4.24 4.38 14,255 120,805
2011 3,52 4.27 900 7627
2012 2.44 463 80 678
2013 2.44 463 13 110
Gash Flow Hedges interest expense s recognized. Substantially all of the unrecognized net

Changes in the tair value of foreign exchange contracts and interest rate
swap agreemenis designated and qualifying as casb flow hedges are
reported in other comprehensive income (loss}). These amounis are sub-
sequently reclassified into earnings through other income {gxpense) in

the same period as the hedged items affect earnings. For maost forward
exchange contracts, the amounts are reclassified when products related to
hedged transactions are sold from overseas subsidiaries to customers. In the
case of interest rate swaps, the amounts are reclassified when the related
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loss on derivatives included in accumulated other comprehensive income
of ¥165 million ($1,398 thousand) at March 31, 2007 will be reclassified
into earnings within the next 12 months.

Equity Price Risks

The Company's other investments are exposed to changes in equity price
risks and consist mainly of available-for-sale securities. Fair value and other
information for such equity securities is disclosed in Note 4.




Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company had the following financial instruments at March 31, 2007 and 2006:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2007 2006 2007
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial assets:

Finance receivables—net ¥267,829 ¥248,744 ¥203,625 ¥193,578 $2,269,738 $2,108,000
Financial liabilities;

Leng-term debt (214,957) (210,777) {196,021) {190,718) (1,821,670} (1,786,246)
Derivative financial instruments recorded as {liabilities) assets:

Foreign exchange instruments (899) (899) (108} (108) (7,619) (7,619)

Interest rate swaps and other instruments 33 33 163 163 280 280

Other investments are disclosed in Note 4.

The fair values of finance receivables and long-term debt are based on
discounted cash flows using the current interest rate on similar financing
investments or borrowings. The fair value estimates of the financial instru-
ments are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company might pay
or receive from actual market transaciions.

The carrying ameunts of cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts
receivable and payable, and short-term borrowings approximate the fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

16. SUPPLEMENTAL EXPENSE INFORMATION

Concentration of Credit Risks

Trade notes and accounts receivable are composed fargely of these to the
dealers in the farm equipment market in North America, These accounts are
sold through securitization to minimize credit risks. Most of the finance receiv-
ables are composed of these to the retail customers in the farm equipment
market in North America. However, the Company considers that credit risks
are limited since no single customer represents a significant concentration of
credit risks.

Research and Development Expenses, Advertising Gosts, and Shipping and Handling Costs
Amounts of certain costs and expenses for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.5. Dollars

2007 2006 2005 2007
Research and development expenses ¥22,925 ¥22,731 ¥21,963 $194,280
Advertising costs 10,085 9,184 9,586 85,466
Shipping and handling costs 50,982 45,834 40,412 432,051

Loss from Disposal and Impairment of Businesses and Fixed Assets
Loss from disposal and impairment of businesses and fixed assets for the year
ended March 31, 2007 includes a loss from disposal of fixed assets of
¥1,172 million ($9,932 thousand) and a loss from disposal and impairment of
btisingsses of ¥1,446 million ($12,254 thousand) resulting mainly from the
liquidation of & company which operated a construction business.

Loss from disposal and impairment of businesses and fixed assets for the
year ended March 31, 2006 includes a loss from impairment of fixed assets of

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

¥1,038 million and a loss from disposal and impairment of businesses of
¥3,648 million resulting mainly from a loss of ¥2,788 million related to the
additional payments due to empioyment transfer to a subsidiary and an affiliat-
ed company.

Loss from disposal and impairment of businesses and fixed assets for the
year ended March 31, 2005 includes a loss from impairment of fixed assets of
¥1,095 million and a gain of ¥1,022 million resulting mainly from the sale of a
company which is involved in a rental computer server service.

Commitments
Commitments for capital expenditures outstanding at March 31, 2007
approximated ¥3,819 million ($32,364 thousand),

The Company leases certain office space and equipment and employee
housing under cancelable and noncancelable 'ease agreements,
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An analysis of leased assets under capital leases is as follows;

Thousands of
Millions of Yen LS. Dollars
2007 2006 2007
Machinery and equipment ¥12,148 ¥10,000 $102,949
Accumulated depreciation (5,852} (3.977) (49,593)
Software 281 -— 2,381
¥ 6,577 ¥ 6,023 $ 55,737

Amortization expenses under capita! leases for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were ¥3,677 millicn ($31,161 thousand), ¥2.763

million, and ¥2,858 million, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments required under capital and noncancelable operating leases that have an initial or a remaining lease term in excess of one

year as of March 31, 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Capital Operating Capita! Operating
Years Ending March 31, Leases Leases Leases Leases
2008 ¥3,329 ¥ 682 $28,212 $ 5780
2009 2,031 18 17,212 3,542
2010 1,049 262 8,890 2,220
20 175 97 1,483 822
2012 89 81 754 687
2013 and thereafter 42 245 356 2076
Total minimum lease payments 6,715 ¥1,785 56,907 $15127
Less: amounts representing interest {138) (1,170)
Present value of net minimum capital fease payments ¥6,577 $55,737

Capital lease obligations are included in the current portion of long-term
debt and long-term debt in the consolidated balance sheets. Rental expenses
under cperating leases for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and

Guarantees

The Company is centingently fiable as guarantor of the indebtedness of dis-
tributors including affiliated companies, and customers for their borrowings
from financial institutions. The Company would have t¢ perform under these
guarantees in the events of default on a payment within the guarantee periods
of 1 year to 10 years for distributors and customers. The maximum potential
amount of undiscounted future payments of these financial guarantees as of
March 31, 2007 was ¥949 million ($8,042 thousand).

2005 were ¥5,727 million {$48,534 thousand), ¥6,009 million, and ¥7,029
million, respectively.

The Company issues contractual product warranties under which it gener-
ally guarantees the perfarmance of products delivered and services rendered
for @ certain period or term. The Company determines its reserve for product
warranties based on an analysis of the historical data ci costs to perform
under product warranties.

The changes in the accrued product warranty cost for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2007 2006 2007
Balance at beginning of year ¥5,473 ¥2,718 $46,381
Addition 5,007 7,878 42,432
Utilization {4,335) {5,331) (36,737)
Other 56 208 475
Balance at end of year ¥6,201 ¥5,473 $52,551

Accrued product warranty cost is included in other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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Legal Proceedings
In the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999, the Fair Trade Commission
of Japan (the “FTCJ") began an investigation of the Company for an alleged
violatior: of the Anti-Monopoly Law {prohibition of private monopoly or unfair
trade restraint) relating to participation in fixing the shares of ductile iren
straight pipe orders in Japan, In March 1999, the Company received a cease
and desist recommendation from the FTCJ, which was accepted by the
Company in April 1999,

in connection with this investigation, on December 24, 1999, the Company
received a surcharge order of ¥7,072 million from the FTCJ). The Company
has challenged this order and filed a petition for the initiation of hearing proce-
dures that were started in March 2000 and continued through the year ended
March 31, 2007. Under Section 49 of the Anti-Monopoly Law, upon the
initiation of the procedures, the surcharge order lost effect. In addition, Section
7-2 of the law stipulates that surcharges are imposed in cases where price
cartels or cartels that influence prices by curtailing the volume of supply are
carried out. The Company believes that the alleged share cartel does not mest
the requirement of Section 7-2 and has not established any provision for the
ultimate liability, if any, which may result from the settiement of this matter.

An unfavorable outcome from this issue could materially affect the
Company's resuits of operations or cash flows in a given year. The Company
is not able to estimate the likefihood of such an unfavorable outcome or the
ameunt of related losses, if any.

Matters Related to Health Hazard of Asbestos

{Background)

Untii 1995, the Company's plant in Amagasaki, Hyogo Prefecture, had
produced asbestos-containing products. In April 2005, the Company was
advised that some residents who lived near the plant suffered from mesothe-
lioma, a form of gancer that is said to be mainly caused by aspiration

of ashestos. In June 2005, the GCompany voluntarily decided to make
consolation payments to certain residents with mesothelioma and started the
program. In April 2006, the Company decided to establish the relief payment
system in place of the consolation payment and make additional payment to
the residents to whom consclation payment was paid or payable, and started
the system. The new supporting system is applied to the rasidents who claim
for the payment in the future.

With regard to current and former employess wha suffered and are suffer-
ing from asbestos-reiated dissases, the Company shall make the compensa-
tion which is not required by taw but is made in accordance with the
Company’s internal policies.

The Japanese government newly established the Law for the Relief of
Patients Suifering from Asbestos-Related Diseases (*New Asbestos Law") in
March 2006. This law was enacted for the purpose of promptly providing relief
to the people suffering from asbestos-related diseases who are not eligible for
relief by compensation from the Insurance in accardance with the Workars'
Accident Compensation Insurance Law. The relief aid payments are con-
tributed by the national government, municipal governments, and business
entities. The contribution, which includes a special contribution by the cempa-
nies which operated a business closely related to asbestos, te be made by
business entities shall commence from the year ending March 31, 2008.

{Accounting for Asbestos-Related Expenses)

The Company expenses the payments for the health hazard of asbestos
based on the Company’s accounting policies and procedures. (See Note 1.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.) The expenses include
payments to certain residents who lived close to the Corpany’s plants and
current and former employees, and special contribution in accardance with
the New Asbestos Law. The Company recorded expenses aggregating
¥4,035 million {$34,195 thousand), ¥4,196 millian, and ¥210 million during
the years ended March 31, 2007, 2008, and 2005, respectively. These
amounts are included in the selling, general, and administrative expenses.
During the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company expensed the special
contribution in accordance with the New Asbesios Law aggregating ¥735
million ($6,229 thousand) which is expected to be paid during four yaars
commencing after April 1, 2007. The Company accrues in those cases the
conditions of loss contingencies provided under SFAS No. 5, "Accounting
for Contingencies,” are met. The amount accrued and inctuded in recorded
expenses were ¥1,359 million ($11,517 thousand) and ¥3,726 miliion at
March 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively. Though the Company believes that
this amaunt appears to be a better estimate than any cther amount within a
reasonably estimable range of amounts, the additional exposure t0 1083 in excess
of this accrued amount of ¥860 million ($7,288 thousand) exists.

Singe the Company has ng basis or information to project the number
of current and former employees and residents that are going to apply for
paymants, the Company is not able to consider such condition in accounting
for the amount accrued and included in recorded expenses. Despite the filing
of asbestos-related lawsuit against the Japanese government and the
Company by a certain resident in May 2007 for the first ime, the Company is
not able to predict the cutcorne of the lawsit, or predict the possibility of
being filed in other fawsuits like this. Therefore, the Company believes it is
not possible to reasonably estimate the amount of its ultimate lability relating
to this contingency, However, the Company believes ashestos-related issues
contain potantially material risks for the Company's consclidated results of
operations, financial position, and its liquidity.

In August 2006, the Company also announced that the Company would
support two research projects of madical research institutions for curing
mesothelioma, and the Company donated ¥400 miliion ($3,390 thousand) as
a contribution for the year ended March 31, 2007. This contribution is also
included in the selling, general, and adminisirative expenses, which is not
included in askestos-related expenses mentioned above.
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18. SECURITIZATION OF RECEIVABLES

The Company sells trade and finance receivables to investars through bank- resulting from the sales of finance receivables of ¥172 million for the year
ruptcy-remote independent securitization trusts. {See Note 1. SUMMARY ended March 31, 2006.
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.) Retained interests are subsequently measured at fair value based on the
The Company recognized pretax losses resulting from the sales of trade net present value of future anticipated cash flows, which is calculated by
receivables of ¥2,607 million ($22,093 thousand), ¥931 million, and ¥832 analyzing the yield, estimated net dilution, contractual servicing rates, and
million for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, the average life of the transferred receivables.
The Company recognized pretax gains resulting from the sales of finance The amounts of servicing assets or liabilities were not material as of March

receivables of ¥211 million ($1,788 thousand} and ¥479 million for the years 3!, 2007 and 2006.
ended March 31, 2007 and 2005, respectively, and recognized pretax losses

The following key econemic assumptions were used in measuring the retained interest in receivables sold by the Company during the years ended March 31:

2007 2008

Trade receivables;

Weighted average life (months) 6.5 6.5

Expected net dilution (monthly rate) 0.78% 0.78%

Discount rate and fee {annual rate) 5.57% 0.48%
Finance receivables:

Weighted-average life (months) 5.0 49.6

Expected credit losses (annual rate} 0.13% 0.08%

Discount rate {annual rate) 10.00% 11.00%

The following depicts the sensitivity of the fair value of retaingd interests in trade receivables and finance receivables at March 31, 2007 to adverse changes
in the key economic assumptions of the current fair value of future cash flow;

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U8 Dollars
Trade receivables:
Fair value of retained interest ¥72,014 $610,288
Expected net dilution (monthly rate) 0.78%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change 333 2,822
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change 665 5,636
Discount rate and fee {annual rate) 5.57%
Impact on fair value of 10% acverse change 4 288
Impact on fair value of 20% acverse change 67 568

Considerable judgment is requirad in interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value, so the above estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized or would be paid in
a current market exchange. In addiion, the above-estimated amounts generated from the sensitivity anafyses include forwiard-looking statements of market risk, which assume for analytical purposes that
ceriain adverse market considerations may occur, Actual future market conditions may differ materially, and, accordingly, the forward-lacking statements should not be consicered projections by the Company
of future events or losses.

The following table summarizes certain cash flows received from securitization trusts for the years ended March 31:

Thousands of
Milligns of Yen U.S. Dollars
2007 2006 2005 2007
Trade receivables:
Proceeds from collections reinvested in revolving-period securitizations ¥165,633 ¥163.671 ¥108,109 $1,403,669 L
Servicing fees received 338 275 270 2,964
Finance receivatles:
Servicing fees received 576 219 210 4,881
Cash flows received on retained interests in securitizations 1,489 598 359 12,619
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19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended March 31, 2005, the Company sold Nishinihon Kubota
Kaihatsu Co., Ltd., a subsidiary reported in the Other Segment which operated
a golf course and had reported consecutive losses, since it was very unlikely
that Nishinihon Kubota Kaihatsu Co., Ltd. would be able to improve its earnings

in the future.

During the year endad March 31, 2007, Kubota Retex Corp., a subsidiary

Operating results of the discontinued operations for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were as follows:

reported in the Environmental Engingering Segment, decided to liquidate
itself and withdraw from industrial waste treatment market since there were
no prospects of getting in operation as a business.

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Kubota Nishinihan Kubota
Retex Corp. Kaihatsu Co., Ltd. Total Total

Year ended March 31, 2007:
Revenues ¥ 267 ¥ - ¥ 267 $ 2263
Loss from discentinued operations hefore income taxes ¥(2,818) ¥ - ¥(2,818) $(23,881)
Gain from disposal of business _ —_ —_ —
Income taxes 1,532 — 1,532 12,983
Loss from discontinued operations ¥(1,286) ¥ — ¥(1,286) $(10,898)
Year ended March 31, 2006:
Revenues ¥ 615 ¥y — ¥ 615
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes ¥ (115 ¥ — ¥ (115)
Gain from disposal of business — — —
income taxes — — —
Loss from discontinued operations ¥ (115) y — ¥ (119
Year ended March 31, 2005:
Revenues ¥ 348 ¥y — ¥ 348
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes ¥ (331) ¥ — ¥ (331}
Gain from disposal of business — 5,526 5,526
Income taxes — 5,574 5574
Income (less) from discontinued operations ¥ (331) ¥11,100 ¥10,769

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 11, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors resolved to pay a ¢ash
dividend to shareholdars of record on March 31, 2007 of ¥7 per common
share (¥35 per 5 common shares} or a total of ¥9,043 million ($76,636

thousand}.

On June 22, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors approved the pur-
chase of up to 10,000,000 shares, or up to ¥11,000 million (393,220 thou-
sand) of the parent company's outstanding commaon stock on and after June
25, 2007 through September 27, 2007.
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Management's Report on internal Controt over Financial Reporting

Management of Kubota Carporation and subsidiaries (the "Company”} is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15 {f} under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, for the Company. Management
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting using the criteria set forth in Internal Contral -
Integrated Framework issued by the Cemmittee of Spansoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation,
management concluded that the Company’s internal controt over financial reporting was effective as of March 31, 2007.

Management's assessment of the Company's internal control over financial reperting as of March 31, 2007 has been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report.

Dated: June 22, 2007

%yl x 8B

Daisuke Hatakake
President and Representative Director

{Principal Executive Officer)

N

Hirokazu Nara
Managing Director

(Principal Financial Officer)

54 Kubota Corparation




Deloitt
e o I e @] Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Nakanoshima Central Tower
2-2-7, Nakanoshima, Kita-ku
Osaka-shi, Osaka 530-0005
Japan

Tel: +81 (6) 4560 6000
Fax: +81 {6) 4560 6001
www.deloitte.com/jp

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Kubota Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kubota Gorporation and subsidiaries {the “Company") as of March 31,
2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income (loss), sharenolders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endad March 31, 2007, ail expressed in Japanese yen. These financial statements are the
respensibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is te express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audils in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit te obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates madg by management, as welt as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Certain information required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS") No, 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information” has not been presented in the accompanying cansolidated financial statements. In our opinion, pres-
entation concernirg operating segments and other information is required for a complete presentation of the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

The Company has not accounted for a nanmonetary security exchange transaction, that occurred during ihe year ended March 31, 1997,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the recognition of the non-
monetary exchange gain, and the related impact in subsequent periods, is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The Company has disclosed the effects of the departure anc other relevant information in Note 1 to the cansoli-
dated financial statements.

In our epinion, except for the omissicn of segment and other information required by SFAS No. 131 and the effect of not properly record-
ing a nonmonetary securily exchange transaction, as discussed in the preceding paragraphs, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kubota Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2007, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the siandards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the efective-
ness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
June 22, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
aver financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in cur apinion, such translation has
bheen mace in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1. Such U.S. dellar ameunts are presented solely for the convenience of readers
outside Japan.

Dibocete Tl Tobboitin

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Nakanoshima Central Tower
2-2-7, Nakanoshima, Kita-ku
Osaka-shi, Osaka 530-0005
Japan

Tel: +81 (6) 4560 6000
Fax: +81 {6} 4560 6001
www deloitte.com/jp

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Kubota Corporatian:

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, that Kubota Corporation and subsidiaries (the *Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
March 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal contro! over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reparting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the zudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reascnable
basis for our opinions.

A company's intesnal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal exec-
utive and principal financial officers, or persens performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, manage-
ment, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal control over finan-
cial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permii preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and diractors of
the company; and (3) previde reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposi-
tior of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent imitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper manage-
ment averrice of controls, materiai misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
contrals may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

[ eur opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal controt over financial reporting as of March 31,
2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Alsa in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control aver financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accerdance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consoli-
dated financial statements as of and for the year endad March 31, 2007 of the Company and our report dated June 22, 2007 expressad
a qualified opinion on those financlal statements because of the omission of segment and other information requirad by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Reiated Informatien” and because of not
properly recording a nonmonetary security exchange transaction.

Daboirts. Tmccle Tobmator

Jung 22, 2007

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Directory

KUBOTA CORPORATION

Head Office

2-47, Shikitsuhigashi 1-chome,
Naniwa-ku, Osaka 556-8601, Japan
Phore: (81}-6-6648-2111
Facsimile: (81)-6-6648-3862

Tekyo Office

1-3, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 3-chome,
Chun-ku, Tokyo 103-8310, Japan

Phone: (81)-3-3245-3111

Facsimile: (81)-3-3245-3049

OVERSEAS OFFICE

Beijing Office

Room 1056,

New Century Office Tower,

No. 6 Southern Road,

Capital Gym., Beijing 100044,
People’s Republic of China
Phone: (86)-10-6849-2277
Facsimile: (86)-10-6849-2280

OVERSEAS SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATES

NORTH AMERICA

Kubota Tractor Corporation
3401 Del Amo Blvd.,

Torrance, Califernia 90503, U.S.A.
Phone: (1)-310-370-3370
Facsimile: {1)-310-370-2370
URL: hitg:/Awww kubota.com

Kubota Credit Gorporation, U.S.A.

3401 Del Amo Bivd.,

Torrance, California 90503, U.S.A.
Phone: (1}-310-370-3370

Facsimile: (1)-310-370-2370

URL: http://www kubotacreditusa.com

Kubota Manufacturing

of America Corporation
Gainesville Industrial Park North,
2715 Ramsey Road,

Gainesville, Georgia 30501, U.S.A,
Phane: (1)-770-532-0038
Facsimile: {1)-770-532-9057

Kubota Industrial Equipment
Corporation

1001 McClure Industrial Drive,
Jefferson, GA 30549, U.S.A.
Phone: (1)-706-387-1000
Facsimile: {1)-706-387-1300

Kubota Engine America
Corporation

505 Schelter Road,

Lincolnshire, lingis 60069, U.S.A.
Phone: (1)-847-955-2500
Facsimile: {1)-847-955-2501

URL: hitp:/Awww kubotaengine.com/

Kubota Membrane USA Gorporation
2018 156th Avenue NE, Suite 100
Bellevue, WA 98007, U.S.A,

Phone: (1)-425-748-5011

Facsimile: (1)-425-644-2185

Kubota Canada Ltd.
5900 141h Avenue, Markham,
Ontario L3S 4K4, Canada
Phone: (1)-905-294-7477
Facsimile; (1)-305-294-6651
URL: http://Awww.kubota.ca/

Kubota Metal Corporation
{Fahramet Division)

25 Commerce Road, Crillia,
Ontario L3V 6L6, Canada

Phane: (1)-705-325-2781
Facsimile: (1)-705-325-5887

URL: http://www kubotametal.com/

OCEANIA

Kubota Tractor Australia
Pty Ltd

100 Keilor Park Drive, Tullamarine,
Victoria 3043, Australia

Phone: (61)-3-82758-2000
Facsimile: (61)-3-9279-2030
URL; http:/Awww.kubota.com.au/
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EUROPE

Kubota Europe S.A.S.
19-25, Rue Jules Vercruysse,
Z\., BP88 95101 Argenteuil,
Cedex, France

Phone: (33)-1-3426-3434
Facsimile; {33)-1-3426-3499

Kubota (Deutschiand) GmbH
Senefelder Strafe 3-5,

©3110 Rodgau/Nieder-Roden,
Germany

Phone: (49)-6106-873-0
Facsimile: {49)-6106-873-198
URL: http://www kubota.de/

Kubota Baumaschinen GmbH
Steinhauser Straffe 100,

66482 Zweibriicken, Rheinlandpfalz,
Germany

Phone: (49)-6332-4870

Facsimile: {49)-6332-487-101

Kubota Espaiia S.A.
Avenida Recomba No. 5,
Poligno Industrial La Laguna,
Leganes, 28914

Madrig, Spain

Phone: (34)-91-508-6442
Facsimile: (34)-91-508-0522

Kubota {U.K.) Limited
Dormer Road, Thame,
Oxfordshire OX9 3UN, UK.
Phone: {44)-1844-214500
Facsimile: (44)-1844-261568
URL: http://www kubota.co.uk/

Kubota Membrane Europe Lid.

8 Hanover Street, London W1S 1YE, UK.

Phone: (44)-(0) 20-7290-2731
Facsimile: (44)-(0} 20-7280-2733
URL: htip://www. kubota-mbr.com/
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ASIA

The Siam Kubota Industry
Co., Ltd.

101/19-24 Navanakor,

Tambol Kiongneung, Amphur
Klongluang, Pathumthani 12120,
Thalland

Phone: (66)-2-529-0363
Facsimile: {66)-2-529-0081

Kubota Agricultural Machinery
{Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

77, Suhong East Road, Industrial Park,
Suzhou, Jiangsu 215026

Pzople's Republic of China

Phone: (86)-512-6716-3122
Facsimile: (86)-512-6716-3344

Kubota Construction Machinery
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

G Unit, 16th Floor, Pudong Development
Mansion,

588 Pudong South Road, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120,

People’s Republic of China

Phane; (021)-5879-4630/4631

Facsimile: {021)-5879-4632

Jiangsu Biaoxin Kubota
Industrial Co., Ltd.

186 Lishi Avenue, Xin Qiao Town,
Jingjiang City, Jiangsu, 214536,
People’s Republic of China
Phone: (86)-523-433-3999
Facsimile: (86)-523-433-3999

Shin Taiwan Agricultural
Machinery Co., Lid.

16, Fengping 2nd Road,
Taliao Shiang Kaohsiung,
Hslen 83107, Taiwan, R.0.C.
Phone: {886)-7-702-2333
Facsimile: (886)-7-702-2303

KAMCGO Co., Ltd,

3rd Floor, Bently Bldg., 106-2 Yangjae-Dong,
Seocho-ku, Seou! 137-130, Korea

Phone: {82)-2-2058-1028

Facsimile: (82}-2-2058-1029

P.T. Kubota Indonesia
JL. Setyabudi 279,
Semarang, Indonesia
Phone: (62)-24-7472849
Facsimile; (62)-24-7472865

P.T. Metec Semarang
Tanjung Emas Export Processing
Zone, JL. Coaster No. 8 Block B,
12A-16 Semarang, Central Java,
Indonesia

Phone: (62)-24-3520435
Facsimile: {62)-24-3520432

Kubota Agro-Industrial
Machinery Philippines, Inc.
155 Panay Avenue,

South Triangle Homes,

1103 Quezen City, Philippines
Phone: (63)-2-9201071
Facsimile; (63)-2-9241848

Sime Kubota Sdn. Bhd.

1, Jalan Puchong, Taman Perindustrian
Puchong Utama, 47100 Puchong,
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

Phone: {60)-3-806G-1000

Facsimile: {60}-3-8060-7982




Directors and Corporate Auditors

President and Representative Directos

Daisuke Hatakake

Executive Vice President
and Representative Director

Moriva Hayashi

Executive Managing Directors

Toshihire Fukuda
Yasuo Masumoto

Managing Directors
Eisaku Shinohara
Yoshihike Tabata
Kazunobu Ueta
Marimitsy Katayama
Nobuyuki Toshikuni
Hirokazu Nara

Directors
Masayoshi Kitaoka
Tetsuji Tomita
Masatoshi Kimata
Nobuyg Shiojt
Takeshi Torigog
Satoru Sakamoto
Hideki hwabu
Takashi Yashii
Kohkichi Uji
Toshihira Kubo
Kenshirp Ogawa

Corporate Auditors
Junichi Maeda
Yoshiharu Nishiguchi
Yuzusu Mizuno

Yoshio Suekawa
Masanobu Wakabayashi

investor Information

Stock Listings
Domestic: Tokyo and Osaka
Overseas; Mew York and Frankfurt

Transfer Agent for Common Stock
The Chuo Mitsui Trust

and Banking Company, Limited

2-21, Kitahama 2-chome, Chuo-ku,
Osaka 541-0041, Japan

Depositary and Transfer Agent for ADRs
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.

4 New York Plaza, New York,

NY 10004, U.S.A.

ADR Holder Contact

JPMorgan Service Center

P.0. Box 3408,

South Hackensack, NJ 07606-3408, U.S.A.
Phone: 1-800-990-1135

Facsimile: 1-201-680-4604

Investor Inquiries

Head Office

Finance & Accounting Dept.

2-47, Shikitsuhigashi 1-chome,
Naniwa-ku, Osaka 556-8601, Japan
Phone: (81)-6-6648-2111
Facsimile: (81)-6-6648-3862

Tokyo Office

Tokye Administration Cept.

1-3, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 3-chome,
Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8310, Japan
Phone: (81)-3-3245-3111

Facsimile: (81)-3-3245-3049

Financial information and CSR reports arg available on
Kubota's Web site:
hitp://www kubota.co.jp/

NYSE Corporate Governance Standards

The Company has made available on its Web site (http://www_kubota.co.jp/ir/english/cas/index.html} a gereral summary of the
significant differences between its corporate governance practices and those foliowed by U.S. companies under New York Stock
Exchange listing standards.

This annuai report is primted on recycled paper,
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